
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
NOVEMBER 23, 2009 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�


 

 

 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
  

 



 

 

 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS 

(City Council Rules of Procedure – Rule 16) 
 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with 
recognition of the Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or 
comment. City Council requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring 
it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel 
that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it 
to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the 
Mayor and Council 
. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be 

extended with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak 

for up to five (5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak 

for up to five minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent 
Agenda items or any other item as permitted under the Open Meetings Act 
during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City 
Council members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are 
related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public 
Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up 
to speak either on a Public Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of 
the agenda. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
November 23, 2009 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION:  Pastor Scott LeLaCheur - Zion Christian Church 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

C-1 Presentations: 1 

(a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program 
(July/August), Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will present a check 
in the amount of $970.00 to Leader Dogs for the Blind ........................................ 1 

(b) National Red Ribbon Campaign – Nancy Morrison, Troy Families for Safe 
Homes; Student Representatives and Teachers from the Troy School District 
will be on hand to bring their signed petitions to City Council ............................... 1 

(c) Citizens Academy Class 14 Graduation/Presentation of Certificates to Don 
Barnes, Craig Chamberlain, Gary Dowen, Tina Dowen, Belinda Duggan, Dan 
Duggan, Carl Fucinari, Cathy Fucinari, Sue Kazmierczak, Ted Kazmierczak, 
Beth Messacar, Kim Rosseter, Geoffrey Sarna, Tony Sarna, Karen Yelder 
and Diane Zygmontowicz ..................................................................................... 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

E-1 No Public Hearings 2 



 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City 
Council, Article 16 – Members of the Public and Visitors 2 

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

G-1 No Postponed Items 2 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 2 

H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: 2 

(a) Mayoral Nominations:  Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) ................. 3 
(b) City Council Nominations:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Employee Retirement System Board 
of Trustees; Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust; Historic District 
Commission; Historic District Study Committee; Municipal Building Authority; 
Parks & Recreation Board; Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments 
(SEMCOG); Troy Daze Committee; and Youth Council ....................................... 3 

H-3 Proposed Troy City Code Ordinance Amendment – Chapter 98 – Criminal Code 
Under 21 – Purchase, Consume or Possess Alcohol and Under 21 - PBT Refusal 5 

H-4 Candlewood Second Amended and Restated Consent Judgment 6 

H-5 February 23, 2010 Special Election Proposed Millage Question 6 

H-6 Recovery Zone Facility Bond – North American BanCard Project Plan 7 

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 7 

I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 7 

I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 7 

I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 7 

I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 7 



 

 

I-4 Request for Recognition as  Nonprofit Organization Status from Kristine Casko, 
Member of the Board of Directors for the Pink Rose Inspirational Foundation, Inc. 8 

I-5 Final Addendum #2 – Charnwood Phase 1 and 2 Chip Seal Contract 07-4 8 

I-6 Request from Square Lake – Livernois Business, Inc. for a New SDM License with 
Gas Pumps to be Located at 5997 Livernois – MLCC Request #518636 8 

I-7 Designation of Act 51 Street Administrator 9 

I-8 City of Troy Investment Policy and Establishment of Investments Accounts 9 

I-9 Proposed 2010 City Council Meetings 9 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 10 

J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 10 

J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
some future point in time): None Submitted 10 

K. COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 10 

K-1   No Council Referrals Advanced 10 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 10 

L-1   No Council Comments Advanced 10 

M. REPORTS 10 

M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 10 

(a) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – September 15, 2009 ....................................... 10 
(b) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – October 7, 2009 .................................. 10 
(c) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – October 12, 2009 ........................................ 10 
(d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – October 14, 2009 ... 10 
(e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 27, 2009 ......................... 10 
(f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 27, 2009 ......................... 10 



 

 

(g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – November 4, 2009 .............................. 10 
(h) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – November 9, 2009 ...................................... 10 
(i) Library Advisory Board/Draft – November 12, 2009 ........................................... 10 

M-2 Department Reports: 11 

(a) Police Department – 2009 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report .......... 11 
(b) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services 

– October, 2009 .................................................................................................. 11 
(c) Building Department – Permits Issued October 2009 ........................................ 11 

M-3  Letters of Appreciation: 11 

(a) Letter of Thanks to Sam Lamerato from Sue Kazmierczak Regarding the 
Presentation ....................................................................................................... 11 

M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 11 

M-5  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 
Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of The Detroit Edison Company – 
Case No. U-16047 11 

M-6  Communication from Wayne State University, Congratulating City Attorney Lori 
Grigg Bluhm on her Inclusion in this Year’s Edition of Michigan Super Lawyers 
Magazine 11 

M-7  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Certification as 
International Municipal Lawyers Association (IMLA) Local Government Fellow 11 

N. STUDY ITEMS 11 

N-1   No Study Items Submitted 11 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 12 

O-1 Closed Session 12 

P. ADJOURNMENT 12 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 12 

Monday, December 7, 2009 Regular City Council ................................................. 12 
Monday, December 21, 2009 Regular City Council ............................................... 12 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 23, 2009 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION:  Pastor Scott LeLaCheur - Zion Christian Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
 

(b) Absent Council Members: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of       at the Regular 
City Council Meeting of Monday, November 23, 2009 due to     . 
 
Yes:    
No:    

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

C-1 Presentations: 
(a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program (July/August), 

Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will present a check in the amount of $970.00 
to Leader Dogs for the Blind   

(b) National Red Ribbon Campaign – Nancy Morrison, Troy Families for Safe Homes; 
Student Representatives and Teachers from the Troy School District will be on hand to 
bring their signed petitions to City Council   

(c) Citizens Academy Class 14 Graduation/Presentation of Certificates to Don Barnes, 
Craig Chamberlain, Gary Dowen, Tina Dowen, Belinda Duggan, Dan Duggan, Carl 
Fucinari, Cathy Fucinari, Sue Kazmierczak, Ted Kazmierczak, Beth Messacar, Kim 
Rosseter, Geoffrey Sarna, Tony Sarna, Karen Yelder and Diane Zygmontowicz 

  
D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 23, 2009 
 

- 2 - 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City 
Council, Article 16 – Members of the Public and Visitors 

Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of 
the Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council 
requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the 
appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been 
resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, 
and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended 

with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up 

to five (5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up 

to five minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or 
any other item as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment 
portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City 
Council members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related 
to topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment 
may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on 
a Public Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
G-1 No Postponed Items 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 

H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 23, 2009 
 

- 3 - 

 
(a) Mayoral Nominations:  Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA)  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA)  
Appointed by Mayor, Council Approval - Council Alternates (2) - Term expires with term of office 
 

City Council Alternate Term Expires 11/11/2013 
 

City Council Alternate Term Expires 11/11/2013 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b) City Council Nominations:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory 

Committee for Senior Citizens; Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees; Retiree 
Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust; Historic District Commission; Historic District Study 
Committee; Municipal Building Authority; Parks & Recreation Board; Southeastern 
Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG); Troy Daze Committee; and Youth 
Council 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons w/Disabilities 
Appointed by Council  (9-Regular) – 3-Year Terms: 3-Regular-w/disabilities; 3-Regular-general populace; 
3-Regular in need of transportation  
(3-Alternate) - 3-Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 11/01/2011 
  
 Term Expires 11/01/2012 
  
 Term Expires 11/01/2012 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 23, 2009 
 

- 4 - 

  
 Term Expires 11/01/2012 
  
 Term Expires 11/01/2012 
  

Alternate Term Expires 11/01/2012 
  

Alternate Term Expires 11/01/2012 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
Appointed by Council  (9-Regular) – 3-Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 04/30/2011 
 
 Unexpired Term 04/30/2012 
 

 
Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust 
Appointed by Council - City Council Representative 
  
 Unexpired Term 04/15/2010 
 
Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) - 3-Year Terms; Student – 1-Year Term 
(All Troy residents; at least 2 chosen by a duly organized history group & 1 architect, if 
available.) 
 

Student Term Expires 07/01/2010 
  

Architect (if available) Unexpired Term 05/15/2012 
 
Historic District Study Committee 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular-Ad Hoc) - 3-Year Terms (1-Historic District Comm. Member;   
& 1-Local Historic Preservation Organization) 
  
 Ad Hoc 
  
 Ad Hoc 
  

Historical Society Member Ad Hoc 
  

Historic District Comm. Member Ad Hoc 
Note: Historic District Commission notified and will forward their recommendation asap. 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council  (5-Regular) - 3-Year Terms 
  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 23, 2009 
 

- 5 - 

 Unexpired Term 01/31/2012 
 
Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) 3-Year Terms 
  
Jeffrey Stewart - Troy Daze Rep.** Term Expires 11/30/2010 
**Rec’d resolution recommendation from Troy Daze Committee; Requests reappointment 
 
 
Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments (SEMCOG) 
Appointed by Council  (1-Delgate & 1-Alternate) Appointment Every Odd Year Election   
  

Delegate Term Expires 11/08/2011 
  

Alternate Term Expires 11/08/2011 
 
Troy Daze Committee 
Appointed by Council  (9-Regular) 3-Year Terms 
  

 Term Expires 11/30/2012 
  

 Term Expires 11/30/2012 
  
 Term Expires 11/30/2012 

 
Youth Council 
Appointed by Council (13 Regular) - Student 1-Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 06/01/2010 
 
 Term Expires 06/01/2010 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-3 Proposed Troy City Code Ordinance Amendment – Chapter 98 – Criminal Code 

Under 21 – Purchase, Consume or Possess Alcohol and Under 21 - PBT Refusal 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 98, 
Criminal Code, by amending Section 98.10.03 and repealing Section 98.10.04 as 
recommended by City Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 23, 2009 
 

- 6 - 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-4 Candlewood Second Amended and Restated Consent Judgment 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached Second Amended 
and Restated Consent Judgment in Candlewood Hotel Company, Inc. and Rosso Development 
v. City of Troy, Oakland County Circuit Court, Case Number 80-207200CZ; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the document and file it with the Oakland County Register of Deeds upon 
entry by the Court, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-5 February 23, 2010 Special Election Proposed Millage Question 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES as to form the following proposed 
Millage Question language for the Special Election scheduled by the City Council, Resolution 
#2009-11-328, for Tuesday, February 23, 2010: 
 

CITY OF TROY GENERAL OPERATING MILLAGE PROPOSAL 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL WOULD BE AUTHORIZED TO LEVY UP TO 1.9 MILLS WITH 
THE SUCCESSFUL PASSAGE OF THE FOLLOWING QUESTION: 
  
Shall the City of Troy levy a new additional millage of up to 1.9 mills against all taxable 
property for a five-year period of time, 2010 through 2014, for general operating purposes, 
including but not limited to, police, fire, and quality of life purposes? 1.9 mills are equal to 
$1.90 on each $1,000.00 of taxable value. If approved, the additional millage levied will 
raise approximately $9,129,000.00 the first year it is levied.  
 
Yes:  
No: 

 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 23, 2009 
 

- 7 - 

 
H-6 Recovery Zone Facility Bond – North American BanCard Project Plan 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has reviewed and hereby APPROVES the attached 
Economic Development Corporation of the County of Oakland Project Plan for North American 
Bancard, Inc., which is located at 250 Stephenson Highway, in the City of Troy, as provided for 
in MCL 125.1608, the Economic Development Corporation Act (PA 1974 No. 338); and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a certified copy of this resolution to the Oakland County Economic Development 
Corporation Board of Directors. 
 
Yes: 
No:    

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 
  
I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE  CO NSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11-  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of November 9, 2009 as submitted. 
 
I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 23, 2009 
 

- 8 - 

I-4 Request for Recognition as  Nonprofit Organization Status from Kristine Casko, 
Member of the Board of Directors for the Pink Rose Inspirational Foundation, Inc.   

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from the Pink Rose 
Inspirational Foundation, Inc., asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization 
operating in the community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as 
recommended by City Management. 
 
I-5 Final Addendum #2 – Charnwood Phase 1 and 2 Chip Seal Contract 07-4 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Final Addendum #2 to Contract 
No. 07-4, Charnwood Hills Phase 1 and 2 Chip Seal to Pavement Recycling, Inc., 210 S. 
Blacks Corners Rd., Imlay City, MI  48444, for $5,979.16. 
 
I-6 Request from Square Lake – Livernois Business, Inc. for a New SDM License with 

Gas Pumps to be Located at 5997 Livernois – MLCC Request #518636 
 
(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Square Lake – Livernois Business, Inc. for a new SDM License with Gas Pumps to be located 
at 5997 Livernois, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County {MLCC Request #518636} “above all 
others”; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance. 
   
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Square Lake – Livernois Business, Inc., for a new SDM License with Gas Pumps to be 
located at 5997 Livernois, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County {MLCC Request #518636}, and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 23, 2009 
 

- 9 - 

hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
   
I-7 Designation of Act 51 Street Administrator 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
WHEREAS, Section 13(7) of Act 51, Public Acts of 1951 requires that each incorporated city 
and village (to which funds are returned under the provisions of this section) designate a single 
Street Administrator who shall be responsible for and shall represent the municipality in 
transactions with the Michigan Department of Transportation pursuant to this act;  
 
WHEREAS, The Street Administrator shall be responsible for and coordinate street 
improvements, maintenance, traffic operations work, and the development, construction, or 
repair of off-street parking facilities and construction or repair of street lighting; and 
 
WHEREAS, It has historically been the City Manager who serves as the designated Street 
Administrator for the City of Troy; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DESIGNATES City Manager 
John Szerlag as the single Street Administrator for the City of Troy in all transactions with the 
Michigan Department of Transportation. 
 
I-8 City of Troy Investment Policy and Establishment of Investments Accounts 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the attached investment policy and 
establishment of investment accounts, and copies shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting.  
 
I-9 Proposed 2010 City Council Meetings 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL HOLD Regular Meetings in 2010 according to the 
following schedule at 7:30 PM:  
 

Monday, January 4 & 25 
Monday, February 1 & 15   
Monday, March 1 & 15 
Monday, April 5 &19 
Monday, May 10 & 17 
Monday, June 7 & 21 
Monday, July 12 & 26 
Monday, August 9 & 23 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 23, 2009 
 

- 10 - 

Monday, September 13 & 27 
Monday, October 4 & 18 
Monday, November 8 & 22 
Monday, December 6 & 20 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL HOLD Special Study Sessions 
for the purpose of budget discussions in 2010 according to the following schedule at 7:30 PM: 
 

Monday, April 26 
Monday, May 3 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL HOLD Regular Liquor Violation 
Hearing Meetings in 2010 according to the following schedule at 7:30 PM: 
 

Wednesday, February 10  
Wednesday, February 17    

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council MAY SCHEDULE other Special Meetings 
as needed. 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time): None Submitted 

K. COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

K-1   No Council Referrals Advanced 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
L-1   No Council Comments Advanced 
 

M. REPORTS  
M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
(a) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – September 15, 2009 
(b) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – October 7, 2009  
(c) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – October 12, 2009   
(d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – October 14, 2009 
(e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 27, 2009  
(f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 27, 2009  
(g) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – November 4, 2009    
(h) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – November 9, 2009  
(i) Library Advisory Board/Draft – November 12, 2009  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 23, 2009 
 

- 11 - 

M-2 Department Reports: 
(a) Police Department – 2009 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report   
(b) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – October, 

2009  
(c) Building Department – Permits Issued October 2009   
 
M-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
(a) Letter of Thanks to Sam Lamerato from Sue Kazmierczak Regarding the Presentation 
 
M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 
M-5  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 

Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of The Detroit Edison Company – 
Case No. U-16047 

 
M-6  Communication from Wayne State University, Congratulating City Attorney Lori 

Grigg Bluhm on her Inclusion in this Year’s Edition of Michigan Super Lawyers 
Magazine 

 
M-7  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Certification as 

International Municipal Lawyers Association (IMLA) Local Government Fellow 

N. STUDY ITEMS 
N-1   No Study Items Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 23, 2009 
 

- 12 - 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 
O-1 Closed Session  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268 (e) Pending Litigation – City of Troy v. Century Plaza and City of Troy v. JMT 
Properties, LLC.  
 
Yes: 
No: 

P. ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, December 7, 2009 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 21, 2009 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



  
  

TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: November 17, 2009 
SUBJECT: Amendment to Minor in Possession of Alcohol Ordinance  

 
 
 In 1995, the Michigan legislature enacted tougher laws to curb underage drinking.  
Several communities, including Troy, adopted regulations that mirrored these state statutory 
provisions.  For example, Chapter 98, Section 10.03 and Section 10.04 is very similar to MCL 
436.1703 (1) and (7).   
 

These ordinance provisions were recently challenged as unconstitutional in a 
case of first impression, People of the City of Troy v. Chowdhury.  In Chowdhury, Troy 
police officers were dispatched to a party where underage minors were drinking alcohol.  
When the officers arrived at the scene, there were several young adults, under the legal 
drinking age, who were leaving the party.  Several of these young adults admitted that 
they illegally consumed alcohol at the party.  Troy’s police officers then administered a 
PBT (Preliminary Breath Test) to these persons who were outside the residence, 
including Mr. Chowdhury.  Since the PBT results indicated that Mr. Chowdhury had 
consumed alcohol, and since he was under 21 years old, he was charged as a minor in 
possession of alcohol, in violation of Chapter 98.10.03.  Subsequently, he filed a motion 
in the 52-4 District Court to suppress the PBT results, arguing that the administration of 
the PBT test was in violation of his Fourth Amendment right against unlawful search and 
seizure.  The District Court Judge granted his motion, and this was affirmed by the 
Oakland County Circuit Court Judge, who determined that the trial court judge had not 
abused his discretion.  However, since this was an issue of first impression in the 
Michigan state courts, the Michigan Court of Appeals granted the City’s application for 
leave to appeal.   

 
The Michigan Court of Appeals affirmed the trial court in the Chowdhury case.  

This decision directly impacts both state statutory provisions and local ordinances that 
allow police officers to administer PBT tests to minors who are suspected of illegally 
drinking alcohol.   

 
Since the City has not filed an application for leave to appeal with the Michigan 

Supreme Court, the City now needs to amend its ordinance.  A proposed amendment to 
Chapter 98, Section 10.03 and a repeal of Chapter 98.10.04 is attached for your review 
and consideration.  The amendment substitutes the word “request” for the word 
“require.”  If a minor does not consent to a PBT test, then the police officer can still 
request a warrant to preserve the evidence.  The proposed revision also corrects a 
grammatical error, and deletes Section 98.10.04, which provided a penalty for refusing 
to submit to a PBT test.   

 
Please let us know if you have any questions concerning this matter. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
H-03



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 98 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 98 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Section 98.10.03 is amended and Section 98.10.04 is repealed as follows: (Underlining 
and strikeout denote changes) 
 
98.10.03 Under 21 – Purchase, Consume or Possess Alcohol. A person less than 

21 years of age shall not purchase or attempt to purchase alcoholic liquor, 
consume or attempt to consume alcoholic liquor, or possess or attempt to 
possess alcoholic liquor.  A person who violates this section is guilty of a 
misdemeanor punishable as follows: 

 
a. For the first violation a fine of not more than $100.00, and the 

court may order all applicable sanctions and programs provided 
in the State of Michigan minor in possession of alcohol statutes. 
 

b. For a second violation of this section or a local ordinance or 
state law which substantially corresponds to this section a fine 
of not more than $200.00 and the court may order all applicable 
sanctions and programs provided in the State of Michigan minor 
in possession of alcohol statutes. 

 
c. For a third or subsequent violation of this section or a local 

ordinance or state law which substantially corresponds to this 
section a fine of not more than $500.00 and the court may order 
all applicable sanctions and programs provided in the State of 
Michigan minor in possession of alcohol statutes. 

 
A peace police officer who has reasonable cause to believe a person less 
than 21 years of age has consumed alcoholic liquor may require request 
the person to submit to a preliminary chemical breath analysis. A peace 
police officer may arrest a person based in whole or in part upon the 
results of a preliminary chemical breath analysis.  The results of a 
preliminary chemical breath analysis or other acceptable blood alcohol 



 

  

2 

test are admissible in a criminal prosecution to determine whether the 
minor has consumed or possessed alcoholic liquor. 
 
A police officer who witnesses a violation of this ordinance may stop and 
detain the person for purposes of obtaining satisfactory identification, 
seizing illegally possessed alcoholic liquor, and issuing an appearance 
ticket. 
 
This section does not prohibit a person less than 21 years of age from 
possessing alcoholic liquor where permitted by state law.                                     

 
98.10.04 Under 21 – PBT Refusal.  A peace officer who has reasonable cause to 

believe a person less than 21 years of age has consumed alcoholic liquor 
may require the person to submit to a preliminary chemical breath analysis.  
A person less than 21 years of age who refuses to submit to a preliminary 
chemical breath analysis as required in this section is responsible for a civil 
infraction and may be ordered to pay a civil fine of not more than $100.00. 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or 
abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any 
ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this 
penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and 
new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of 
this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 



 

  

3 

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 
at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on 
the _______ day of _____________, 2009. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
        Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk    
 



 

 
 
TO:   Members of the Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE:  November 18, 2009 
SUBJECT: Candlewood Amended and Restated Consent Judgment  
 
 On October 20, 1981, the City of Troy entered into a consent judgment to settle a lawsuit filed 
by Candlewood Hotel Company, Inc. and Rosso Development, Inc..  The original consent judgment 
re-zoned the property from O-S-C (office-service-commercial district) to O-1 (office building district).  
On July 2, 1997, this consent judgment was amended by the parties to allow for the construction of a 
three story extended stay hotel and a 47,200 square foot single story office building.  Since extended 
stay hotels were not required by the zoning ordinance to have public meeting rooms, the 1997 
amendment required the office building to have a meeting room available for rent to the public.   
 
 In preparation for a new occupancy, the successor owner of the office building, Kirts Office 
Center Associates, LLC., has requested an elimination of the requirement to provide a public meeting 
room.  In order to accomplish this, there needs to be an amendment to the consent judgment.  The 
attached proposed Second Amended and Restated Consent Judgment makes this change, as well 
as updating the successor owners of the property and making other non-substantive changes.  If 
approved, this document would be recorded with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, and would 
be controlling for the property.   
 
 Kirts Office Center Associates has approved and executed the document.  The other 
successor party in interest is Candlewood Portfolio I, L.L.C., a real estate investment trust, which 
complicates the approval of a consent judgment.  With a real estate investment trust, there are 
several persons with financial interest in the property.  It is not anticipated that any of these persons 
will oppose the amendment.  However, past experience has demonstrated that there are persons in 
real estate investment trusts with either a minimal financial interest or persons who are unaware that 
their investment portfolio contains a financial interest in a real estate investment trust.  In order to 
protect their interests, and to minimize inconvenience to the persons with a financial interest in the 
real estate investment trust, if City Council approves the second amended and restated consent 
judgment, then it is our intent to file a motion for entry of the amended and restated consent 
judgment with the Oakland County Circuit Court.  This motion would be served on all persons with a 
financial interest.  A consent form would also be sent to each owner in the real estate investment 
trust for their convenience.  If a financially interested person is opposed to the amended consent 
judgment, then they will have an opportunity to voice these objections prior to the Court’s entry of the 
judgment.  By filing a motion for entry of the amended and restated consent judgment, the Court has 
the ability to enter the second amended and restated consent judgment, even if some of the partial 
owners in the real estate investment trust have not provided either consent or objection.   
 
 Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns about this proposed amendment.   

MMEEMMOORRAANNDDUUMM  

campbellld
Text Box
H-04



 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

OAKLAND COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT 
 

CANDLEWOOD HOTEL COMPANY,    Case No. 80-207200 CZ 
INC., a Delaware Corporation, and 
ROSSO DEVELOPMENT, INC., a     Hon.  
Michigan Corporation, 
 
  Plaintiffs, 
 v         
 
CITY OF TROY, a Michigan       
municipal corporation, 
 
  Defendant. 
______________________________________/ 
 
BUTZEL LONG 
By:  Carl Rashid, Jr. (P23915) 
        Danielle J. Hessell (P68667) 
Attorneys for Kirts Office Center  
Associates, L.L.C. 
150 W. Jefferson, Suite 100 
Detroit, MI  48226-4430 
(313) 225-7000 

 CITY OF TROY 
By:  Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908) 
City Attorney, City of Troy  
Attorney for Defendant 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3320 

_____________________________________________________________________________/ 
 

SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED CONSENT JUDGMENT 
 

At a session of said Court held 
In the Courthouse, in the City of 
Pontiac, Oakland County, MI, 
on:  ____________________ 
 

PRESENT:  HONORABLE __________________________ 
    CIRCUIT JUDGE  

 



 

 

 

 The PARTIES, CANDLEWOOD PORTFOLIO I, L.L.C., successor in interest to 

CANDLEWOOD HOTEL COMPANY, INC., AND KIRTS OFFICE CENTER ASSOCIATES, 

L.L.C., successors in interest to ROSSO DEVELOPMENT INC. (Plaintiffs) and CITY OF 

TROY (Defendant) agree to the terms and conditions of this SECOND AMENDED AND 

RESTATED CONSENT JUDGMENT, which is controlling for the real property at the Northeast 

corner of Kirts Boulevard and Troy Center Drive, as described below.   

RECITALS 

A. On October 20, 1981, this Court entered a Consent Judgment (“Original 

Judgment”) affecting certain property (the “Property”) and more particularly described as: 

City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, Lots 31 (20-28-101-021), 32 
(20-28-101-020), 33 (20-28-101-019) and 34 (20-28-101-018) of F. J. 
Kirts Farms Subdivision, except the South 60 ft taken for Kirts Road. 
 

B. The Plaintiffs for the Original Judgment were Rosso, Messer, Schell Partnership, 

a Michigan Co-Partnership, which subsequently transferred its interest in the Property to 

successor Plaintiff, Rosso Development Company, Inc. (Rosso).  Rosso entered into an 

agreement with Candlewood Hotel Company, Inc. for a portion of the Property, and Candlewood 

Portfolio I, L.L.C. (Candlewood) is successor in interest by merger to Candlewood Hotel 

Company, Inc., therefore Candlewood is also a successor Plaintiff.   Rosso subsequently 

transferred its interest in the Property to Kirts Office Center Associates, LLC (Kirts), making 

Kirts a successor Plaintiff. 

C. Under the terms of the Original Judgment, the Property was rezoned from the O-

S-C zoning classification (Office-Service- Commercial District) to the O-1 zoning classification 



 

 

(Office Building District).  The parties agree that these zoning classifications for the Property are 

both constitutional and reasonable.  

D. Subsequent to the entry of the Original Judgment, the parties negotiated a First 

Amended and Restated Consent Judgment regarding the Property, which was entered by the 

Court on July 2, 1997.  The First Amended and Restated Consent Judgment allowed Plaintiffs to 

construct a three story extended stay hotel and a 47,200 square foot single story office building. 

E. According to the last sentence of paragraph 5 (a), “The office building to be 

constructed on the Property shall have a meeting room available for rent to the public.”  

Plaintiffs have requested the deletion of this requirement, and the City is in agreement.      

F. The parties therefore desire to amend the First Amended and Restated Consent 

Judgment to reflect this agreement, and therefore incorporate this modification into a Second 

Amended and Restated Consent Judgment.     

IT IS ORDERED AND ADJUDGED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. This Second Amended and Restated Consent Judgment shall completely replace 

the First Amended and Restated Consent Judgment, which replaced the Original Judgment.   

These previous versions of the consent judgment (the Original Judgment and the First Amended 

and Restated Consent Judgment) are no longer controlling for the Property. 

2. The term Plaintiffs in this Second Amended and Restated Consent Judgment 

refers to KIRTS OFFICE CENTER ASSOCIATES, L.L.C. and CANDLEWOOD PORTFOLIO 

I, L.L.C., and any subsequent successor in interest.   

3. The Recitals, as set forth above in Paragraphs A through F, are incorporated into 

this Second Amended and Restated Consent Judgment. 



 

 

4. After the date of this Amended Judgment, the Property may be used, developed, 

occupied, and divided, subject to the terms of this Second Amended and Restated Consent 

Judgment.   

5. The Property may be used and developed in accordance with the provisions of 

Article XXIV of Chapter 39 of the City of Troy Ordinances (O-1- Low Rise Office District), a 

copy of which is attached as Exhibit A, and incorporated by reference.  However, an extended 

stay hotel shall be permitted, as depicted on the Site Plan, Elevation Plan and Floor Plans (a copy 

of which is attached as Exhibit B).   

6. The first two stories of the extended stay hotel, as referenced in paragraph 5, shall 

have a brick exterior material, and the exterior of the third story of the extended stay shall be 

EFIS (Exterior Insulation and Finish System).   

7. Although the manager for the extended stay hotel (set forth in paragraph 5) may 

reside on the premises in a manager’s suite, there shall be no other permanent residences in the 

extended stay hotel.   

8. All height limitations, building setbacks, interior building configurations, 

intensity of development and similar matters are controlled by the provisions of the City of Troy 

Zoning Ordinance (Chapter 39), unless otherwise specifically provided for in this Second 

Amended and Restated Consent Judgment or as otherwise indicated on the Site Plan or Floor 

Plans, which are attached as Exhibit B and incorporated by reference.  In the event that there is a 

conflict between the Site Plan or Floor Plans and the text of this Second Amended and Restated 

Consent Judgment, the Site Plan or Floor Plan shall control.  However, minor modifications to 

the Site Plan or Floor Plans that are not inconsistent with the spirit of this Second Amended and 

Restated Consent Judgment may be made with the written agreement of the parties to any such 



 

 

modifications, and amendment of the Second Amended and Restated Consent Judgment shall not 

be required.   

9. Plaintiffs shall adhere to all codes, ordinances and design standards of the City 

without variances except as otherwise provided in this Second Amended and Restated Consent 

Judgment.  

10. When required by the City of Troy Development standards, Plaintiffs were 

required to construct deceleration lanes on Kirts Road and Troy Center Drive in connection with 

the construction of any buildings or structures on the Property.  

11. The provisions of this Second Amended and Restated Consent Judgment shall be 

covenants running with the land, and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties, 

their officers, employees, representatives, heirs, successors and assigns and all others acting 

under their direction and control.   

12. Plaintiffs agree to hold the City of Troy, its officials, employees and agents 

harmless from any and all claims made, including attorney fees and other costs incurred by the 

City that arise from this Second Amended and Restated Consent Judgment, the Original 

Judgment, or the First Amended and Restated Consent Judgment.  

13. A certified copy of this Second Amended and Restated Consent Judgment shall be 

recorded against the Property in the Office of the Register of Deeds for the County of Oakland, 

Michigan, and the Oakland County Register of Deeds is directed to accept this document for 

recordation.  

14. In order to effectuate the intent of this Second Amended and Restated Consent 

Judgment and to reconcile any differences of the parties that may arise in connection with the 



 

 

performance of this Second Amended and Restated Consent Judgment, this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this action. 

 

_________________________________ 
Circuit Judge 

 
 

(signatures continued on the following page) 
 



 

 

Approved as to form and substance 
for entry: 
 
KIRTS OFFICE CENTER ASSOCIATES, L.L.C.,  
a Michigan Limited Liability Company, 
 
 
 
By:  Kirts Development, L.L.C., Managing Member 
 
By:  ______________________________________ 
A. Matthew Kiriluk 
 
Its:  Managing Member_______________________ 
 
 
 
 
CITY OF TROY 
 
 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
By:  _________________________________ 
 Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk  
 
 
Approved as to form:   
 
 
____________________________________ 
Danielle J. Hessell (P68667) 
Attorney for Kirts Office Center Associates, L.L.C.  
 
______________________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908) 
City Attorney, City of Troy 











































 
Date November 19, 2009 
TO: Mayor and City Council 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

SUBJECT: February 23, 2010 Special Election Proposed Millage Question  
 
Background: 
 

City Council requested City Administration to draft a proposed ballot question for 
recommendation to Council. Taking into consideration Council’s concerns voiced at City 
Council Meetings, City Administration drafted the following proposed ballot question, which 
includes a 5-year time limitation and clarifies that it is for general operating purposes, 
including but not limited to: police, fire, and quality of life purposes. 
 

Outside legal counsel reviewed the proposal and made slight modifications to the proposal 
which are contained in the submittal. 
 

A preamble has been included with the millage question to clarify that Council will have the 
authority to levy an amount up to the 1.9 mills with the successful passage of the question. 
 

 Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2009-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES as to form the following 
proposed Millage Question language for the Special Election scheduled by the City 
Council, Resolution #2009-11-328, for Tuesday, February 23, 2010: 
 

  CITY OF TROY GENERAL OPERATING MILLAGE PROPOSAL 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL WOULD BE AUTHORIZED TO LEVY UP TO 1.9 MILLS WITH 
THE SUCCESSFUL PASSAGE OF THE FOLLOWING QUESTION: 
  
Shall the City of Troy levy a new additional millage of up to 1.9 mills against all taxable 
property for a five-year period of time, 2010 through 2014, for general operating 
purposes, including but not limited to, police, fire, and quality of life purposes? 1.9 mills 
are equal to $1.90 on each $1,000.00 of taxable value. If approved, the additional 
millage levied will raise approximately $9,129,000.00 the first year it is levied.  
 
Yes:  
No: 
 

 Yes: 
No: 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  IITTEEMM   

campbellld
Text Box
     H-05



campbellld
Text Box
H-06





































CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, November 9, 2009, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:29 PM. 
 
Father Ron Jozwiak of St. Elizabeth Ann Seton Catholic Church gave the Invocation. The 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given.  

INSTALLATION CEREMONY: 2009-2011 City Council Convenes: a) Installation of 
New Members; b) Adoption of Rules of Procedure; c) Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem 

(a) Installation of New Members 
 
Members of the City Council who begin new terms were administered the Oath of Office. 
 
ROLL CALL 
  
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
 
(b) Adoption of Rules of Procedure 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the Rules of Procedure of the City 
Council of the City of Troy as recorded by the City Clerk in the Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Adoption of Rules of Procedure Rule 1 Appointment of 
Mayor Pro Tem 
 
Resolution #2009-11-318 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Rule 1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR 
PRO TEM of the Rules of Procedure of the City Council of the City of Troy to read: “The Mayor 
Pro Tem shall be elected by the Council from among its members, annually in November.” 
 
Yes: Schilling, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater 
No: Beltramini, Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 2 - 

Vote on Resolution to Amend Adoption of Rules of Procedure Rule 6 Order of Business 
and Rule 16 Members of the Public and Visitors 
 
Resolution #2009-11-319 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by McGinnis 
  
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Rule 6 ORDER OF BUSINESS and Rule 
16 MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS of the Rules of Procedure of the City Council 
of the City of Troy as presented. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Adoption of Rules of Procedure Rule 12 Withdrawal of 
Motions Prior to Voting 
 
Resolution #2009-11-320 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Rule 12 WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS 
PRIOR TO VOTING of the Rules of Procedure of the City Council of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: All-7  
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Adopt Rules of Procedure as Amended  
 
Resolution #2009-11-321 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the Rules of Procedure of the City 
Council of the City of Troy as AMENDED and recorded by the City Clerk in the Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 3 - 

(c) Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem 
 
Resolution #2009-11-322 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS Wade Fleming to serve as Mayor Pro 
Tem for the City Council of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak  
No: Schilling  
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a) Cathy Russ, Library Director provided a Library update and presented the 2008-2009 

Troy Public Library Annual Report. 
b) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation to Pam Brady 

recognizing her participation in America Recycles 2009. 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2010 Application 
 
The Mayor opened the public hearing. 
The Mayor closed the public hearing after receiving no public comment. 
 
Resolution #2009-11-323 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County is preparing an Annual Action Plan to meet application 
requirements for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, and other 
Community Planning and Development (CPD) programs;  
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County has requested CDBG-eligible projects from participating 
communities for inclusion in the Action Plan;  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has duly advertised and conducted a public hearing on November 
09, 2009 for the purpose of receiving public comments regarding the proposed use of PY 2010 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 4 - 

Community Development Block Grant funds (CDBG) in the approximate amount of 
$167,960.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy found that the following projects meet the federal objectives of the 
CDBG program and are prioritized by the community as high priority need: 
 

Account Number Project Name Amount 
172170-730744  Flood Drain Improvements  $115,072.00 
172160-732170 Public Services (Yard Services) $ 50,388.00 
172140-730789 General Program Administration $ 2,500.00 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City of 
Troy CDBG application be submitted to Oakland County for inclusion in Oakland County’s 
Annual Action Plan to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, and hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute all documents, agreements, or contracts 
which result from this application to Oakland County. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-2 Receive Public Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority Utilizing 

Tax-Exempt Bonds for William Beaumont Hospital – Troy  
 
The Mayor opened the public hearing. 
The Mayor closed the public hearing after receiving public comment from: 
 
Dennis Urick City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority 
Lisa Higgin Miller Canfield for City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority 
Marvin Reinhardt Opposed 
 
Resolution #2009-11-324 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority (the “Authority”) proposes to 
make loans to William Beaumont Hospital (the “Hospital”), to be used, in part, by the Hospital 
to (1) finance the construction, acquisition, renovation, equipping, rehabilitation and/or improve 
hospital facilities in the City of Troy, Michigan and (2) refinance indebtedness used to finance 
the construction, renovation and equipping of certain hospital facilities in the City of Troy, 
Michigan;  
 
WHEREAS, The Authority intends to issue City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority 
Hospital Revenue Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital Obligated Group) and Hospital Revenue 
Refunding Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital Obligated Group), in one or more series (the 
“Bonds”) on behalf of the Hospital in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed 
$305,000,000 to provide funds with which to make loans to the Hospital;  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 5 - 

WHEREAS, The Bonds will be limited obligations of the Authority and will not constitute 
general obligations or debt of the City of Royal Oak, the City of Troy, the County of Oakland, 
the State of Michigan or any political subdivision thereof;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council has held a public hearing after notice was published as provided 
in, and in satisfaction of the applicable public hearing requirements of, the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”);  
 
WHEREAS, A record of public hearing will be maintained with the City Clerk;  
 
WHEREAS, The Authority has requested that this City Council approve the issuance of the 
Bonds by the Authority; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy desires to express its approval of the issuance 
of the Bonds by the Authority;  
 
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TROY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. Solely for the purpose of fulfilling the public approval requirements of the Code, the City 
 Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the issuance, sale and delivery of not to 
 exceed $305,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds by the Authority. 

 
2. The City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to provide three (3) certified copies of this 
 resolution to the Secretary of the Authority. 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 
Harry Philo Item D-2 
Marvin Reinhardt Miscellaneous Issues 
James Savage Transit Center 
Patty Koerner Council Absences, Library 
 
The Meeting RECESSED at 8:54 PM. 
 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 9:00 PM. 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Nomination and Appointment to Personnel Board  
 
a) City Council Nomination 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 6 - 

Resolution #2009-11-325 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby NOMINATES Ann M. Comiskey for consideration 
for appointment to the Personnel Board to fill the unexpired term of April 30, 2011. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater 
No: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
b) City Council Appointment 
 
Resolution #2009-11-326 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve on the 
Personnel Board with an unexpired term of April 30, 2011 as indicated: 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE: NOMINATIONS 
Gerard T. Staeger  Ann M. Comiskey 

Schilling    
Beltramini    

Fleming    
Howrylak    

Kerwin     
McGinnis    

Slater    
 
Vote on Resolution to Confirm the Appointment to the Personnel Board 
 
Resolution #2009-11-327 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS the appointment of Ann M. Comiskey 
to serve on the Personnel Board to fill the unexpired term of April 30, 2011. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
D-2 Scheduling of a Special Election for February 23, 2010 and Direct City 

Administration to Prepare Ballot Language  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 7 - 

Resolution #2009-11-328 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a February 23, 2010 Special 
Election for voters to vote on a proposed millage question and DIRECTS City Administration to 
draft ballot language with a proposed millage rate increase of 1.9 mills for the next five years, to 
be utilized to restore Public Safety and Quality of Life venues, with the language to be provided 
to the City Council on the next Regular City Council Meeting Agenda for Council Action. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Fleming, Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend City Council Rules 
 
Resolution #2009-11-329 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rule #6 ORDER OF BUSINESS of 
the City Council Rules to allow City Council to take action on resolutions directing City 
Administration regarding the 6-Year Organizational Plan. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Table Discussion 
 
Resolution #2009-11-330 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Beltramini   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby TABLES the discussion until after a resolution is 
drafted by Administration. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Meeting RECESSED at 10:10 PM. 
 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 10:22 PM. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 8 - 

Vote on Resolution Authorizing the Use of General Fund Balance 
 
Resolution #2009-11-331 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, City Council has a Budget policy of maintaining a general fund balance between 
10% and 17% of the general fund; and  
 
WHEREAS, There is a need to use general fund to balance future budgets, as long as the 
unreserved undesignated fund balance does not fall below 15% of the adopted general fund 
budget;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That City Administration is AUTHORIZED to utilize 
general fund balance to balance budgets as long as the undesignated unreserved general fund 
balance remains at 15% or greater.  
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Appointments: None 
Scheduled (b) City Council Appointments: Liquor Advisory Committee   

 
a) Mayoral Appointments – None Scheduled 
 
b) City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2009-11-332 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (7 Regular) - Student 1-Year Term 
 
Lauren E. Harden - Student Term Expires 07/01/2010 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 9 - 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Nominations: None Forwarded (b) City Council Nominations: None Forwarded  

 
a) Mayoral Nominations – None Forwarded 
 
b) City Council Nominations – None Forwarded 

E-3 Troy City Code Ordinance Amendments – Chapter 103 – Alarm Ordinance; Chapter 
60 – Fees and Bonds Required; and Chapter 88 – Nuisances  

 
a) Adoption of Troy City Code Chapter 103 – Alarm Ordinance 
 
Resolution #2009-11-333 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance to add Chapter 103, Alarm 
Ordinance, of the Troy City Code as recommended by the City Management, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes: Schilling, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater 
No: Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
b) Amendment of Troy City Code Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required 
 
Resolution #2009-11-334 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 60, 
Fees and Bonds Required, of the Troy City Code as recommended by the City Management, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
c) Amendment to Troy City Code Chapter 88 – Nuisances  
 
Resolution #2009-11-335 
Moved by Kerwin   
Seconded by McGinnis   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 10 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 88, 
Nuisances, of the Troy City Code, as recommended by City Management, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No: Beltramini 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
E-4 Bid Waiver – Printing of Election and Voter Registration Materials 
 
Resolution #2009-11-336 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, Printing Systems, Inc. provides Election related supplies and printed materials that 
comply with State of Michigan standards;  
 
WHEREAS, Printing Systems, Inc. has provided the City of Troy with the required materials as 
a result of the lowest quote and regularly as the only vendor able to provide the materials 
requested in the quotes; and 
 
WHEREAS, Printing Systems, Inc. holds the contract for ballot printing and supply kits with 
Oakland County and it is desirable to utilize Printing Systems, Inc. for ballot folding and 
specialized forms in conjunction with the County procurement;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and AUTHORIZES the purchase of printing of election and voter registration 
materials from Printing Systems, Inc. at an estimated cost of $40,000.00 per fiscal year, 
through December 31, 2012.  
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
E-5 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County 
 
Resolution #2009-11-337 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2009-2010 Winter Maintenance 
Agreement between the Road Commission for Oakland County and the City of Troy for snow 
and ice control of certain primary and local roads, which are described and outlined in Exhibit 
A; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 11 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the necessary documents, and a copy of this agreement, which is 
authorized by the provisions of 1951 PA 51 (MCL 247.651 et seq.), shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2009-11-338 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item F-4c which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (F) items, as printed, and Item F-2 as amended. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of October 19, 2009 as amended. 
 
F-3 City of Troy Proclamation:  
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-3 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
a) America Recycles 2009 
 
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 12 - 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Elevator Weight 
Tests, Relief Valve Testing, Bi-Monthly Inspection, and Repairs   

 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-4a 
 
WHEREAS, On November 13, 2006, a three-year contract to provide elevator weight tests, 
relief valve testing, bi-monthly inspections and repairs with an option to renew for an additional 
three (3) years at four municipal buildings was awarded to the lowest acceptable bidder, 
Elevator Technology, Inc. of Detroit, Michigan (Resolution #2006-11-333-E-4c); and 
 
WHEREAS, Elevator Technology, Inc. has agreed to exercise the option to renew the contract 
under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES and EXERCISES 
the option to renew the contract with Elevator Technology, Inc. to provide elevator inspection, 
weight testing, maintenance and repairs under the same prices, terms, and conditions for three-
years at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 25, 2006, to expire 
December 31, 2012. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Hall and Banquet Services   
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a three-year contract beginning with 
fiscal year 2009/2010 to provide Hall and Banquet Services with an option to renew for three 
additional years to the highest rated bidder, the American Polish Cultural Center of Troy, MI, as 
a result of a best value process, which City Council has determined best serves the public 
interest at a cost of $39.00 per plate including gratuity for the Fire Appreciation Banquet and 
$20.00 per plate including gratuity for the Employee Holiday Party, as long as the events are 
budgeted annually for the Fire Appreciation Banquet, and funded through commissions from 
vending machines and ticket sales for the Employee Holiday Party; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of properly 
executed proposal and contract documents, including the Agreement, insurance certificates and 
all other specified requirements; and  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the Agreement pertaining to this contract, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
F-5 Acceptance of a Water Main Easement – HCR Manorcare Properties, LLC – Sidwell 
 #88-20-03-102-022 
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-5 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for water 
main from HCR Manorcare Properties, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-03-
102-022; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 13 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
F-6 Acceptance of a Water Main Easement – Kirts Office Center Associates, LLC – 

Sidwell #88-20-28-101-054  
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for water 
main from Kirts Office Center Associates, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-
28-101-054; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

F-7 Approval of MDOT Subcontract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for Construction 
Engineering Services for the Reconstruction of Wattles Road, 1000’ East and West 
of Rochester Road – Project No. 99.203.5  

 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-7 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES MDOT Subcontract between the City 
of Troy and Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for construction engineering services for the 
reconstruction and widening of Wattles Road, 1,000’ East and West of Rochester Road, at an 
estimated cost of $310,458.27, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 
documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
F-8 Approval of MDOT Subcontract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for Construction 

Engineering Services for the Reconstruction of Rochester Road from Torpey to 
Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5  

 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-8 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES MDOT Subcontract between the City 
of Troy and Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for construction engineering services for the 
reconstruction and widening of Rochester Road, from Torpey to Barclay, at an estimated cost 
of $1,241,042.95, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
F-9 Approval of 2009 Request to Waive Recapture Form  
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-9 
 
WHEREAS, The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates that 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) balances not exceed 1.5 times the current 
program year allocation sixty (60) days prior to the end of the program year (February 28th);  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 14 - 

WHEREAS, The Oakland County Board of Commissioners adopted a policy allowing 
communities to protect funds from their two most recent program years to help comply with this 
regulation;  
 
WHEREAS, All unobligated 2007 and older funds are at risk of recapture December 31, 2009;  
 
WHEREAS, Troy may protect unobligated 2007 funds from recapture for one additional year by 
requesting a waiver; and 
 
WHEREAS, A separate waiver request form must be submitted for each 2007 line item to the 
Manager of the Oakland County Community & Home Improvement Division no later than 
Monday, December 14, 2009; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REQUESTS to waive 
recapture of 2007 CDBG funds as follows: 
 

Account Number Project Name Amount 
730744  Flood Drain Improvements  $92,641.00 
732170 Yard Services $70,000.00 

 
F-10 Approval of Request to Permit Use of Shell Crackers to Disperse Migratory 

Waterfowl – Emerald Lakes Subdivision  
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-10 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES the provisions of Chapter 98, Section 
98.07.02 of the Code of the City of Troy relative to the use of shell crackers to frighten and 
disperse waterfowl away from the Emerald Lakes Village subdivisions, provided that authorized 
persons of the Homeowners Association shall adhere to the following procedures: 

 
1. Shell crackers shall not be discharged before 7:00 a.m. and not after dark in the 

evening; 
2. The permitee(s) shall notify the Police Communications Section prior to discharging 

the shell crackers and shall provide the police with his/her name(s) and phone 
number(s); 

3. A violation of either of the above limitations shall be cause for immediate revocation 
of the City authorization; 

4. Authorization shall expire December 31, 2011. 
 
F-11 Approval of Request from Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation) for a New SDM 

License with Drive-up Window (without alcoholic beverage sales) to be Located at 
2932 East Long Lake – MLCC Request #521903 

 
(a) New License 
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-11a 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 15 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation) for a new SDM License with Drive-up Window (without 
alcoholic beverage sales) to be located at 2932 East Long Lake, Troy, MI 48085 Oakland 
County {MLCC Request #521903} “above all others”; and 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-11b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation), for a new SDM License with Drive-up Window 
(without alcoholic beverage sales) to be located at 2932 East Long Lake, Troy, MI 48085 
Oakland County, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 
document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
F-12 Approval of Request from Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation) for a new SDM 

License with Drive-up Window (without alcoholic beverage sales) to be located at 
1965 E Big Beaver – MLCC Request #521882 

 
(a) New License 
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-12a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation) for a new SDM License with Drive-up Window (without 
alcoholic beverage sales) to be located at 1965 E Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48083 Oakland County 
{MLCC Request #521882} “above all others”; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance. 
   
(b) Agreement 
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-12b 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Walgreen Co. (An Illinois Corporation), for a new SDM License with Drive-up Window 
(without alcoholic beverage sales) to be located at 1965 E Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48083 Oakland 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 16 - 

County, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy 
of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
F-13 Contract Award: Informal Quote Process – Snow Removal Rental Equipment 

Including Operators  
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-13 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contract(s) to provide seasonal 
requirements of snow removal rental equipment including operators with an option to renew for 
one (1) additional season utilizing an informal quote process to the following vendors at the 
hourly rates contained in Appendix A, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting: 
 

Company Name Location 
Florence Cement Company  Shelby Township, MI  
Diponio Contracting Shelby Township, MI 
Sterling Topsoil and Grading Fraser, MI 
ABC Paving Company Trenton, MI 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City staff to 
extend the hourly contract prices to other contractors, after the successful bidders have been 
employed, to speed the snow removal process during times of snow emergencies; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the contracts will expire April 15, 2010, and are 
CONTINGENT upon submission of properly executed contract documents, including insurance 
certificates, agreements, and all other specified requirements, and Troy City Council hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreements, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
  
F-14 Traffic Committee Recommendations – October 21, 2009  
 
a) Installation of STOP Sign on Southbound Ruthland at Kirk Lane 
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-14a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. 09-03-SS 
be issued for the installation of a STOP sign on southbound Ruthland at Kirk Lane. 
 
b) Installation of STOP Sign on Norton at Quill Creek 
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-14b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. 09-04-SS 
be issued for the installation of a STOP sign on Norton at Quill Creek. 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 17 - 

c) Installation of STOP Sign on Marengo at Norton 
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-14c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. 09-05-SS 
be issued for the installation of a STOP sign on Marengo at Norton. 
 
d) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 3039 Rochester Road 
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-14d 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. 09-05-MR 
be issued for the establishment of fire lanes/tow away zones at 3039 Rochester Road as 
recommended by the Fire Department. 
 
e) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 925 W. South Boulevard 
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-14e 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. 09-06-MR 
be issued for the establishment of fire lanes/tow away zones at 925 W. South Boulevard as 
recommended by the Fire Department. 
 
f) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 791 W. Big Beaver  
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-14f 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. 09-07-MR 
be issued for the establishment of fire lanes/tow away zones at 791 W. Big Beaver as 
recommended by the Fire Department. 
 
g) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 1026 Maplelawn 
 
Resolution #2009-11-338-F-14g 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES Traffic Control Order No. 09-08-MR 
be issued for the establishment of fire lanes/tow away zones at 1026 Maplelawn as 
recommended by the Fire Department. 
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: US Communities Government Purchasing 

Alliance Program – Landscape Structures, Inc.   
 
Resolution #2009-11-339 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 18 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase climbing 
boulder play equipment along with engineered wood fiber safety surface through the US 
Communities Government Purchasing Alliance Program Contract #040377 with Landscape 
Structures, Inc. for an estimated total cost of $53,982.00, as detailed in project proposal #09-
600A, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting and funded 
through the Community Development Block Grant Program; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon submission of properly 
executed insurance certificate(s) and any other specified requirements.  
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
G-2 Memorandums:  
a) City of Troy v Chowdhury/Proposed Amendment to Chapter 98 – Criminal Code  

Noted and Filed 
 
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1 Council Comments 
 
Mayor Schilling encouraged all who can to come to the Veterans’ Day Ceremony at Veterans’ 
Plaza on Wednesday, November 11, 2009 from 11:00 AM to Noon. 
 
Council Member Beltramini informed Council Members that she has the handbook on ethics for 
Michigan municipalities for any who are interested in reading it. 
 
Council Member Slater commented on Item J-3a, and offered his gratitude to Sylvan Glen Pro 
Shop Staff. 
 
Council Member Kerwin congratulated Mayor Pro Tem Fleming, and commented on training 
and orientation by the Michigan Municipal League. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 19 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Amended/Final – April 8, 2009  
b) Downtown Development Authority/Final – May 27, 2009 
c) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Final – August 12, 2009  
d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – September 9, 2009 
e) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – September 14, 2009  
f) Historic Commission/Final – September 29, 2009  
g) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – October 6, 2009 
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 6, 2009  
i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 6, 2009 
j) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – October 12, 2009  
k) Planning Commission/Draft – October 13, 2009  
l) Planning Commission/Final – October 13, 2009 
m) Library Advisory Board/Draft – October 15, 2009 
n) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – October 27, 2009  

Noted and Filed 
 
J-2 Department Reports:  
a) City Council Expense Report – October, November 2009  
b) Building Department – Permits Issued September 2009  
c) City Manager’s Office – September 30, 2009 Quarterly Financial Report  
d) Golf Course Monthly Operations Summary for September 2009 

Noted and Filed 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Kraig Schmottlach from Golf Course Patron Chris Coussens 

Regarding the Excellent Service Received from the Sylvan Glen Golf Course Staff  
b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Chief Nelson Regarding the Assistance and 

Support during Funeral for Fire Staff Technician Jack Schoenbeck  
c) Letter of Thanks to Chief Mayer from Old Navy Leadership Team Regarding Support 

during Kids Safety Event  
d) Telephone Call from Strathmore Village Resident Beryl Bradick in Appreciation of the 

Outstanding Service of the Police Department  
e) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Royal Oak Police Chief Jahnke Regarding the 

Police Department Support at the 2009 Woodward Dream Cruise  
f) Letter of Thanks to Chief Mayer from Resident Victor Sandy Regarding the Efforts of the 

Police Department during Home Invasion  
g) Letter of Thanks to John Szerlag from Hills of Charnwood Homeowners Association  
h) Letter of Appreciation from Taniel Nishanian Regarding Tringali Sanitation  
i) Letter of Appreciation from the Family of Renee Barr Regarding the Professionalism and 

Kindness of Police Officers  
j) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Peggy Ruffin Commending the Actions of 

Officer Giordano  
k) Letter of Appreciation to Timothy Richnak from Bob Schultz, Courtwood Villa 

Condominium Association President, Regarding the Dedication and Positive Attitudes of 
Public Works Staff 

 Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 20 - 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  
a) Village of Beverly Hills Resolution Opposing the Elimination of 20J Funding for Certain 

School Districts  
b) City of Royal Oak Resolution Opposing House Bill 5056 
c) City of Royal Oak Resolution Requesting Local Control be Retained if House Bill 5056 

Passes  
Noted and Filed 

 
J-5  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Minutes – September 17, 2009 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Communication from Public Works Director Timothy Richnak Regarding Program 

Year 2009 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds  
Noted and Filed 

 
J-7  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Stephanie Cobb v 

City of Troy d/b/a/ The Northridge Office Center 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-8  Communication from City Council Member Robin Beltramini Regarding NLC 

Finance, Administration and Intergovernmental Relations Steering Committee 
Meeting 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-9  Communication from Police Chief Gary Mayer Regarding Reimbursement Revenue 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-10  Communication from Michigan Liquor Control Commission Regarding Class C 

Liquor License Transfer out of Troy – Paragon of Michigan 2360 Rochester Road 
Noted and Filed  

 
J-11  Communication from Michigan Liquor Control Commission Regarding Wal-Mart 

Approval of Appeal 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-12  Rules of Procedure for the Charter Revision Committee 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-13  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Article on 
Constitutional and Charter Revision 

Noted and Filed 
J-14  Communication from Library Director Cathleen Russ Regarding Drive-up Materials 

Return at the Troy Public Library 
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 9, 2009 
 

- 21 - 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1  No Closed Session Requested 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 11:03 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 
 

November 16, 2009 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 

 
FROM: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 
SUBJECT: Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Kristine 

Casko, Member of the Board of Directors for the Pink Rose Inspirational 
Foundation, Inc. 

  
Background: 
 
  Attached is a request from Kristine Casko, Member of the Board of Directors for the Pink 

Rose Inspirational Foundation, Inc. seeking recognition as a nonprofit organization status 
for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license for fundraising purposes. 

  It has been City Management’s practice to support the approval of all such requests. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-04





































































Ci~~

Troy 


November 16, 2009 

TO: 	 John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: 	 Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engineery 

SUBJECT: Final Addendum #2 - Charnwood Phase 1 & 2 Chip Seal Contract 07-4 

Recommendation: 

• 	 It is recommended that City Council approve Final Addendum #2 for road work by Pavement 
Recycling, Inc. within the Charnwood Phase 1 &2 Sanitary Sewer project areas. The total cost of 
this final addendum is $5,979.17. All project work is complete and the contact can be closed out 
following approval of this addendum. 

Background: 

• 	 Pavement Recycling was awarded the Phase 1 Chip Seal contract in July 2007 by Resolution No. 
2007-07-206-E-4c. Addendum #1 was approved in December 2007 by Resolution No. 2007-12
361, which extended the Chip Seal contract to include roads in Phase 2. 

• 	 All roads in the Phase 1 & 2 areas were reviewed in the spring of 2009 to identify winter related 
road surface damage, which is common on gravel roads with only a thin chip seal surface. The 
contractor was directed to make hot mix asphalt repairs throughout both Phase 1 & 2 areas. The 
work was completed in the summer of 2009. 

• 	 Since it is not practical or cost effective to stop construction for days or weeks until a change order 
can be processed for minor increases in contract quantities, construction continues until final 
completion of the project. If the contact contingency is sufficient to cover added costs, final 
payment to the contractor is made and the project is closed out. If, as in this case, the project cost 
exceeds the contract contingency, City Council approval is required prior to making the final 
payment to the contractor and closing out the contract. 

Financial Considerations: 

• 	 Funds for this work are available in the 2009/010 Sewer Fund account No. 535.7973.044031. The 
budgeted amount includes funds for engineering, construction, inspection and contingencies. 

http:5,979.17
campbellld
Text Box
I-05



Policy Considerations: 

• 	 Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community (Goal t) 
• 	 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quality of life 

venues (Goal II). 

Prepared by: Scott Finlay, Civil Eng. 
G:\ContractsIContracts· 2()J7107·04 Charnwood Chip SeallCorrespondencelAddendum#2R1 .docx 



 

 
 
November 19, 2009 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
    Captain Gerard Scherlinck, Services Division 
    Lieutenant Michael Lyczkowski 
    Sergeant Russel Harden 
    Officer James Feld  
 
SUBJECT: Application for new SDM License with Gas Pumps by Square Lake – 

Livernois Business, Inc. 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Square Lake – Livernois Business, Inc. requests a new SDM License with Gas Pumps to be 

located at 5997 Livernois, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County {MLCC Request #518636}. 
 On October 12, 2009, Majid Elias, Owner and representative for the applicants, answered 

questions for the Liquor Advisory Committee. 
 Mr. Elias explained to the Committee that the purpose of this request is to allow the Square Lake 

– Livernois Business to sell beer and wine at their store. 
 The Committee unanimously approved this request. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The request complies with all applicable Troy City Ordinances and Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission Rules. 
 The Police Department did not find any disqualifying factors for this request. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 This action supports Council’s Outcomes Statement III: “Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy 

reflecting the values of a unique community in a changing and interconnected world.” 
 
JF/Square Lake/Livernois BP 
  
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-06















LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             OCTOBER 12, 2009  

 Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, October 
12, 2009 in the Lower Level Conference Room, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Committee member Patrick C. Hall called the meeting to order a7 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
Roll Call 
 
 PRESENT:  W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
     
 ABSENT:  Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 ALSO PRESENT: Officer James Feld  

Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Dane Lepola, student representative 

    Pat Gladysz 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Ehlert 
 
Resolution #LC2009-10-016  
Moved by Payne 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee member Ehlert at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of October 12, 2009 be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of September 14, 2009 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2009-10-017 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the September 14, 2009 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be APPROVED. 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             OCTOBER 12, 2009  

 Page 2 of 3 

 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. Square Lake – Livernois Business Inc., 5997 Livernois, Troy MI 48098, 

Oakland County requests new SDM License with Gas Pumps {MLCC Req. 
#518636}. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Majid Elias. 
 
Officer Feld informed the Committee that all Building Department and Fire 
Department inspections were approved.  Assistant City Attorney Lancaster 
informed the Committee that an inventory was received from the applicant and is 
in compliance with the City Ordinance. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-10-018 
Moved by Ogg 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Square Lake-Livernois Business, Inc., for a new SDM license with gas pumps be 
APPROVED.   
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert  
 
 
 
 
Officer Feld updated the Committee on the following informational items: 
 
Grand Azteca V Inc. 
Application has been made to transfer a Class C license from Rochester Hills and 
interviews are being conducted by the Building Department. 
 
Simbad Inc.  
Application has been made to transfer a Class C license from Southfield. 
 
NKG Business, Inc.  
Application has been made to transfer license from Buscemi’s. 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             OCTOBER 12, 2009  

 Page 3 of 3 

 
Fine Wine Distributors, Inc. 
A wholesale license has been requested. 
 
Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, LLC  
Ocean Prime restaurant is requesting to enlarge their outdoor service area.  This 
request was originally made in the spring of this year, but they chose to delay the 
project until the patio would be closed for the season.   
 
Space Station 
This is a Marathon gas station at 3410 Rochester is requesting a SDM and SDD 
license. 
 
 
Officer Feld introduced student representative Dane Lepola. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patrick C. Hall, Committee Member 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



 

 
 
                             
 
 
TO:    Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 
SUBJECT:  Designation of Act 51 Street Administrator  
 
 
 
Act 51 (Public Acts of 1951) requires that the local governing body designate a Street Administrator 
to represent the municipality in transactions with the Michigan Department of Transportation.  In Troy, 
the City Manager has historically performed this function; the attached resolution designates John 
Szerlag as the single Street Administrator for the City of Troy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
c: William Huotari, Deputy City Engineer 
 Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 
JML/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2009\11.23.09 – Designation of Act 51 Street Administrator 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-07



 

 
 
November 13, 2009 

 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 
SUBJECT:  City of Troy Investment Policy and Establishment of Investment Accounts  
 

 
The current investment policy was initially approved in November, 1999 and each year thereafter with 
the stipulation that it be reviewed and approved annually by City Council. The current policy has 
served us well during the past several years and is in compliance with Act 20 PA 1943, as amended. 

 
I would also like to update our resolution authorizing the establishment of investment accounts at the 
following institutions: Ambassador Funds; Bank of America; Bank of Michigan; Charter One; Citizens 
Republic Bank; Citizens First Savings Bank; Comerica Bank; Fifth Third Bancorp; Flagstar Bank; 
Huntington Bancshares; JP Morgan Chase & Co.; Merrill Lynch; Michigan Class-MBIA; Peoples State 
Bank; PNC Financial Services; Private Bancorp; Salomon Smith Barney; and TCF National Bank.  
 
This policy is established in order to provide for the safety and diversification of investment accounts. 

 
The investment policy is in compliance with Act 20 PA 1943, as amended. 
 
It is recommended that City Council approve the attached investment policy and listing of approved 
investment account locations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2009\11.23.09 – Investment Policy and Establishment of Accounts 
 

AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-08



CITY OF TROY INVESTMENT POLICY 
To Comply with Act 20 PA 1943, as amended 

 
Purpose:  It is the policy of the City of Troy to invest its funds in a manner which will provide the 
highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow needs of the 
City and comply with all State statutes governing the investment of public funds. 
 
Scope:  This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the City.  These assets are 
accounted for in the various funds of the City and include the general fund, special revenue funds, 
debt service funds, and capital project funds (unless bond ordinances and resolutions are more 
restrictive), enterprise funds, internal service funds, trust and agency funds, and any new fund 
established by the City. 
 
Objectives:  The primary objectives, in priority order, of the City’s investment activities shall be: 
 
 Safety – Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.  Investments 

shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to insure the preservation of capital in the overall 
portfolio. 

 
 Diversification – The investments will be diversified by security type and institution in order that 

potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income generated from the 
remainder of the portfolio. 

 
 Liquidity – The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating 

requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. 
 
 Return on Investment – The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of 

obtaining a rate of return throughout the budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account 
the investment risk constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio. 

 
Delegation of Authority to Make Investments:  Authority to manage the investment program is 
derived from the following:  City of Troy City Council’s most current resolution establishing investment 
accounts (2008-12- 360 - E-4).  Management responsibility for the investment program is hereby 
delegated to the City of Troy Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration who shall establish 
written procedures and internal controls for the operation of the investment program consistent with 
this investment policy.  Procedures should include references to safekeeping, cash purchase or 
delivery vs. payment, investment accounting, repurchase agreements, wire transfer agreements, 
collateral/depository agreements and banking service contracts.  No person may engage in an 
investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this policy and the procedures 
established by the Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration.  The Assistant City 
Manager/Finance and Administration shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall 
establish a system of controls.  The Investment Policy shall be reviewed and approved by the City 
Council annually. 
 
List of Authorized Investments:  The Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration is limited 
to investments authorized by Act 20 of 1943, as amended, and may invest in the following: 
 

(a) Bonds, securities, and other obligations of the United States or an agency or 
instrumentality of the United States. 



(b) Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository of a financial 
institution.  Authorized depositories shall be designated by the City of Troy City Council. 

(c) Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase with the highest classifications 
established by not less than two standard rating services and that matures not more than 
270 days after the date of purchase. 

(d) Repurchase agreements consisting of instruments listed in (a). 
(e) Bankers’ acceptances of United States banks. 
(f) Obligations of this state or any of its political subdivisions that at the time of purchase are 

rated investment grade by not less than one standard rating service. 
(g) Investment pools through an interlocal agreement under the urban cooperation act of 

1967, 1987 (Ex Sess) PA 7, MCL 124.501 to 124.512 
(h) Investment pools organized under the surplus funds investment pool act, 1982 PA 367, 

129.111 to 129.118. 
(i) The investment pools organized under the local government investment pool act, 1986 

PA 121, MCL 129.141 to 129.150. 
 

Safekeeping and Custody:  All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements 
and financial institution deposits, entered into by the Assistant City Manager/Finance and 
Administration may be on a cash basis or a delivery vs. payment basis as determined by the 
Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration.  Securities may be held by a third party 
custodian designated by the Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration and evidenced by 
safekeeping receipts as determined by the Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration. 
 
Prudence:  Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, 
which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own 
affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well 
as the probable income to be derived. 
 
 



 TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager  
 
FROM: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Proposed 2010 City Council Meetings  
 
DATE:  November 16, 2009 
 
 
 
The Community Affairs Department is continuously working to keep the City of Troy website 
updated.  We need your assistance regarding dates for the 2010 City Council meetings for 
inclusion on the City website calendar, in future Troy Today issues, press releases to the media 
and the cable bulletin board.  The following dates take into account all holidays and election 
days (per the City Clerk’s Office), and are submitted for your approval: 
 
 
Monday, January 4 & 25 
Monday, February 1 & 15   
Monday, March 1 & 15 
Monday, April 5 & 19 
Monday, May 10 & 17 
Monday, June 7 & 21 
Monday, July 12 & 26 
Monday, August 9 & 23 
Monday, September 13 & 27 
Monday, October 4 & 18 
Monday, November 8 & 22 
Monday, December 6 & 20 
 
Budget Meetings April 26 & May 3 
 
Dates submitted for Liquor Violation Hearings: 
 
Wednesday, February 10 7:30 pm  
Wednesday, February 17 7:30 pm   
 
 
 
 
 
 
CS 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-09



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                   SEPTEMBER 15, 2009 

1 
 

The Chairman, Glenn Clark, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to order 
at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, September 15, 2009 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Michael Bartnik 
   Glenn Clark 
   Kenneth Courtney 
   Edward Kempen 
   Matthew Kovacs (Arrived 7:48) 
   Lon Ullmann 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Dave Lambert 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF AUGUST 18, 2009 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of August 18, 2009 with the following 
amendment. 
 
Page 7, paragraph 9 to read “Mr. Bartnik said that is a “permitting situation” rather than 
“permitted situation”…. 
 
Yeas:   5 – Clark, Courtney, Kempen, Ullmann, Bartnik 
Absent:  2 – Kovacs, Lambert 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS AMENDED CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  S & MM INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS, 
1728 MAPLELAWN, for relief of the required 6’ high masonry obscuring wall at the 
north property line where the site abuts residential zoned property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of a variance granted by 
this Board in October 2007 for relief of the required 6’ high masonry obscuring wall at 
the north property line where the site abuts residential zoned property per Section 
39.10.01 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board in October 2007 at which time the property 
was owned by Somerset Pontiac GMC Truck, Inc. and was granted approval for a 
period of one year.  This site has since come under new ownership and is before the 
Board for a renewal of that variance. 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01a



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                   SEPTEMBER 15, 2009 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
The petitioners have expanded the parking area at the rear of the site and have placed 
a 6’ high screen wall at the north edge of the parking area.  However this wall is 
approximately 20’ south of the property line and does not extend the full width of the 
property.  Mr. Stimac also stated that the area has a lot of foliage and screening that 
also helps to screen this area from the surrounding residential area. 
 
Mr. Clark asked about the change in ownership and the time lapse of this renewal. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that originally this property was owned by Somerset GMC but was 
sold to S & MM International Investments, and the expiration date of the original 
variance was missed. 
 
Mr. Larry Smith, owner of S & MM International Investments was present and stated 
that they had put up the wall in order to help screen this property.  Mr. Smith indicated 
that they had also put up a wall on the east side of the property.  The wall is 
approximately 15’ – 20’ inside the northern property line and foliage is on the outside of 
the wall. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Kempen 
 
MOVED, to grant S & MM International Investments, 1728 Maplelawn, a three-year (3) 
renewal of relief of the required 6’ high masonry obscuring wall at the north property line 
where the site abuts residential zoned property per Section 39.10.01 of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
 Existing screen wall provides adequate screening of developed area 
 Remainder of the site is undeveloped and heavily wooded. 
 We have no complaints or objections on file. 

 
Mr. Clark clarified the location of the wall.  Mr. Stimac said that the wall has been 
installed at the eastern edge of the property.  However, that adjacent property is also 
industrially zoned.  The Ordinance dictates that a 6’ high wall is required between this 
property and residentially zoned property. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if the petitioner planned to keep the trees in this area and Mr. Smith 
replied that this is their intention. 
 
Mr. Kempen stated that if he was a resident of the abutting residential area, he would 
prefer to look out and see trees rather than a wall. 
 
Vote on the motion to approve. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Kempen, Ullmann, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                   SEPTEMBER 15, 2009 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Absent: 2 – Lambert, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO GRANT RENEWAL FOR THREE (3) YEARS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 - APPROVAL REQUESTED.  ANDREW PUMA, 951 E. SQUARE LAKE, for 
approval under Section 43.74.01 to store an enclosed utility trailer outside on residential 
property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting approval under Section 43.74.01 
of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential 
property.  The enclosed utility trailer described in the application does not meet the 
exceptions found in Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of August 18, 2009 and was 
postponed to this meeting to allow the petitioner to present further documentation to the 
Building Department regarding the use of this trailer.  Mr. Stimac further explained that 
the petitioner had not given any further documentation to Building Department Staff. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Andrew Puma, 951 E. Square Lake, for approval under 
Section 43.74.01 to store an enclosed utility trailer outside on residential property. 
 

 Petitioner has indicated that this trailer will not be used for commercial purposes 
therefore approval is not required. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Ullmann, Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Kempen 
Absent: 2 – Lambert, Kovacs 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – APPROVAL REQUESTED.  MR. & MRS. ROBERT RASCOL, 635 
HARTLAND, for approval under Section 43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store 
a commercial vehicle outside on residential property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are seeking approval under Section 43.74.01 
of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential 
property.  The Ford F450 stake truck described in the application does not meet the 
exceptions found in Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Troy City Ordinance. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of August 18, 2009 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner to bring in documentation regarding costs of  
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                   SEPTEMBER 15, 2009 

4 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
constructing a garage; and also to allow the petitioner to explore other sites to park this 
vehicle. 
 
Mr. Rascol was present and passed out quotes regarding construction of a garage.  Mr. 
Rascol also stated that he did not find anywhere else to park this truck that would be 
considered a secure area.  Mr. Rascol indicated that he had found commercial sites that 
may allow him to park his vehicle, but he does not feel they are safe. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if Mr. Rascol had contacted the Building Department regarding 
parking of this vehicle and he said that he did not.   
 
Mr. Courtney stated that there is a list of secured parking for commercial vehicles that 
Mr. Rascol could look at.  Mr. Courtney further stated that no one was around this 
vehicle at this time and asked why Mr. Rascol considered it safe in this location. 
 
Mr. Rascol said that there were neighbors around.  Mr. Rascol also brought in 
paperwork from the City Council meeting from 1998, which he had interpreted as 
granting approval of the storage of this vehicle outside. 
 
Mr. Courtney pointed out that it was only for one-year. 
 
Mr. Rascol stated that he believed that once he had received approval from City Council 
he did not need to come back or do anything else.   
 
Mr. Bartnik asked why Mr. Rascol was before this Board. 
 
Mr. Rascol replied that it was because someone from the City had notified him that he 
needed to do this. 
 
Mr. Bartnik confirmed that the City had let him know there was a violation.  Mr. Rascol 
said that was correct and he wants approval under the existing law. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that Mr. Rascol does not make any attempts to move this commercial 
vehicle until he is told there is a violation. 
 
Mr. Rascol said that he believed the approval from City Council was for more than one 
year. 
 
Mr. Bartnik pointed out that in March 2008, Mr. Rascol was given a six-month time 
frame to look into other alternatives for this vehicle and he did not come back before the 
Board.  Mr. Rascol apologized. 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                   SEPTEMBER 15, 2009 

5 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that Mr. Rascol had given the Board several quotes regarding the 
construction of a garage ranging in price from $21,900.00 to $26,000.00.  Mr. Clark 
asked if Mr. Rascol would be able to construct a garage at this time. 
 
Mr. Rascol said that right now it would be a financial hardship. 
 
Mr. Clark said that this parcel is very deep and there is a list available regarding outside 
storage of this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if Mr. Rascol has had a commercial vehicle on his property since he 
moved to Troy in 1996.  Mr. Rascol said that was correct. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Alan Brown, 672 Hartland, was present and stated that he lives across the street.  
Mr. Brown indicated that Mr. Rascol maintains his home and truck and it is never parked 
beyond the front of the house.  Mr. Brown said that you couldn’t ask for a better 
neighbor and is in favor of this request. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how many objections were on file regarding this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Clark looked through the file and determined that there are four (4) approvals and 
two (2) objections on file. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that these responses did not include the property occupied by Mr. 
Rascol in 1996 at 680 Hartland. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Mr.& Mrs. Robert Rascol, 635 Hartland, for approval 
under Section 43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle 
outside on residential property.  
 

 Petitioner did not meet the criteria outlined in Item C. 
 Petitioner has made no attempt to indicate that he is seeking a temporary 

approval. 
 
Motion to deny fails due to lack of support. 
 
Mr. Kovacs apologized for missing the August meeting and stated that he had been on 
vacation and also apologized for being late at this meeting.   
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                   SEPTEMBER 15, 2009 

6 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he did not like the truck parked in a residential area, but that the 
location on the side of the house where it was parked was not a problem.  Mr. Courtney 
indicated that he would rather not see a garage constructed on this property and 
indicated that Mr. Rascol should be looking into alternative parking spots.  Mr. Courtney 
also said that he would be willing to grant a short term approval at this point so that Mr. 
Rascol could look into other locations to park this vehicle. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Ullmann 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Robert Rascol, approval under Section 43.74.01 of the 
Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential property for 
a period of nine (9) months. 
 

 The petitioner has complied with the requirements of Items B & C. 
 To allow petitioner the opportunity to explore other sites on which to park this 

vehicle. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he did not understand why the petitioner does not meet the 
criteria outlined in Item C. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that in his opinion this is a large stake truck and believes that the box 
makes it appear larger. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that the vehicle is always parked behind the front of the house and if 
it were a recreational vehicle it would be allowed to park in this area. 
 
Mr. Kempen said that he thought the vehicle could be moved farther back on the 
property. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that he believes it is very difficult for families to keep going in this 
economy and said that he would like to amend the motion to approve for one-year 
rather than nine (9) months. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he would support an amendment as he would rather not see a 
garage on this site and would rather see the vehicle parked off-site. 
 
Motion by Clark 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to amend the original motion by striking 9 months and substituting a time 
period of one (1) year. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                   SEPTEMBER 15, 2009 

7 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 

 To allow petitioner the opportunity to explore other sites on which to park this 
vehicle. 

 To aid the petitioner during this economic climate. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that he is objecting to this motion.  This is a residential area, one 
block north of Big Beaver and he does not believe a commercial vehicle belongs in this 
location.  Mr. Bartnik further stated that he does not understand why the Board would 
put a commercial vehicle in a residential area.  Commercial vehicles devalue property 
and this approval is in place for people to come before this Board to ask for more time 
to look for other alternatives.  This petitioner did not ask permission again and no effort 
has been made on his part to find another location.  Mr. Bartnik said that he would like 
to deny both motions as this vehicle has been parked in a residential location for the last 
10 to 12 years.  Economics have changed up and down over the years and the truck 
has not been moved. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that in his opinion the petitioner meets the criteria outlined in Item C 
and furthermore, if this was a recreational vehicle it could remain in that location 
indefinitely.  In order for this Board to grant approval the petitioner has to meet the 
criteria in Item C and either A or B.  Mr. Kovacs said that he would like to give the 
petitioner one more year to find another location for this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Clark said that he agrees with Mr. Kovacs in that the petitioner has met the criteria 
listed in Item C, but doesn’t necessarily agree that any type of vehicle could be parked 
in this location.  The facts are that southeast Michigan has been horribly impacted by 
today’s economy and he believes this will only be a temporary situation.  There are no 
traffic concerns in this area and the truck is gone for a good portion of each day.  Mr. 
Clark is in favor of the amended motion. 
 
Mr. Bartnik pointed out that a garage could be constructed based on the quotes brought 
in by the petitioner and he does not feel the petitioner meets the criteria in Item B.   
 
Vote on motion to amend original motion. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Kovacs, Clark, Courtney, Kempen 
Nays:  2 – Bartnik, Ullmann 
Absent: 1 – Lambert 
 
MOTION TO AMEND MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on amended motion which will state: 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Robert Rascol, approval under Section 43.74.01 of the 
Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on residential property for 
a period of one (1) year. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                   SEPTEMBER 15, 2009 

8 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 

 The petitioner has complied with criteria B & C. 
 To allow petitioner the opportunity to explore other sites on which to park this 

vehicle. 
 To aid the petitioner during this economic climate. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Clark, Courtney, Kempen, Kovacs 
Nays:  2 – Ullmann, Bartnik 
Absent: 1 – Lambert 
 
MOTION TO GRANT APPROVAL FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR CARRIED 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Ullmann 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Lambert from tonight’s meeting as he is out of town. 
 
Yeas:   6 – Clark, Courtney, Kempen, Kovacs, Ullmann 
Absent:  1 – Lambert 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. LAMBERT CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board that it was possible that the October meeting would be 
cancelled, depending on whether any new applications were received.  A discussion 
began regarding the by-laws of the Board of Zoning Appeals and it was determined that 
the by-laws do not address the cancellation of a regularly scheduled meeting. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Kovacs 
 
MOVED, to allow Mr. Stimac to cancel the next meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals 
on Tuesday, October 20, 2009 if no other new items are presented. 
 
Yeas:   6 – Bartnik, Clark, Courtney, Kempen, Kovacs, Ullmann 
Absent:  1 – Lambert 
 
MOTION TO ALLOW MR. STIMAC TO CANCEL THE OCTOBER MEETING CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac addressed the Board regarding the memo sent out by the City Manager.  Mr. 
Stimac said that Mr. Szerlag offered to attend a future Board of Zoning Appeals meeting 
to discuss the plans.  He will also be attending other Board’s meetings and would be 
happy to include the BZA members at any of those meetings as well.  Mr. Stimac 
indicated that he would get a list together of the meetings Mr. Szerlag will be at and 
pass those along to the Board. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                   SEPTEMBER 15, 2009 

9 
 

The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:31 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Glenn Clark, Chairman 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Secretary 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          OCTOBER 7, 2009 

1 
 

Vice-Chair, William Nelson, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to 
order at 8:40 A.M. on Wednesday, October 7, 2009 in the Lower Level Conference 
Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Bill Nelson 
   Tim Richnak 
   Mark Stimac 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Paul Evans, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
   Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:  Ted Dziurman 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 2, 2009 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of September 2, 2009 as written. 
 
Yeas:   4 – Richnak, Stimac, Zuazo, Nelson 
Absent:  1 – Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  PRLANTA JEWELERS, 888 W. BIG BEAVER, 
for relief of Chapter 85 to install a 43.5 square foot electronic changeable message 
tenant wall sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to install a 
43.5 square foot tenant wall sign.  Section 85.02.05 (c) (3) of the Sign Ordinance limits 
the size of tenant wall signs in the Office Zoning districts to not more than 20 square 
feet in area.  In January 2008, this Board approved a variance to allow the petitioner to 
erect a 40 square foot tenant wall sign.   
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of September 2, 2009 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner to provide a copy of the manufacturer’s instructions 
regarding the brightness of the sign; also to allow the petitioner to provide this Board 
with three or four typical screen shots of what they are proposing to put on the sign; and 
finally for the petitioner to demonstrate the implications between a 40 square foot sign 
and a 20 square foot sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac further stated that the specifications from the manufacturer of the sign 
regarding the brightness of the sign as well as copies of proposed messages have been 
presented to the Board for further consideration. 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01b



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          OCTOBER 7, 2009 

2 
 

Mr. Norman Gumusmas of Prlanta Jewelers was present and stated that the 
configuration of the units require a larger sign. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that the original request was not for a changeable message sign.  
The original proposal was for a sign that would be back lit.  Mr. Richnak stated that he 
traveled through the City as well as nearby communities to look at signs that have a 
changeable message.  The color of the sign and back lighting makes a big difference on 
the impact on a building and the community.  Red colored signs stick out and the 
change is not always harmonious in an area.  Mr. Richnak asked if other communities 
had regulations regarding the brightness allowed for a changeable message sign. 
 
Mr. Gumusmas stated that they would be willing to conform to whatever stipulations the 
Board would find proper. 
 
Mr. Michael Zacks of Bright Star Signs was also present and stated that they would only 
advertise this business and not have other ads on the sign. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if Mr. Stimac was aware of any signs that were objectionable 
because they were too bright.  Mr. Richnak further stated that this Board wants to be 
able to provide signage that is appropriate for this community. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that each community has their own Sign Ordinance and was not aware 
of a universal regulation that would restrict the brightness of the signs.  The brightness 
of the sign would be determined by each community.   Mr. Stimac also said that he is 
not aware of a regulation that dictates that the brightness of the sign could not be 
operated over 50%. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the petitioner has provided Board members with pictures of 
changeable message ground signs in Troy and asked the petitioner if he was aware of 
any changeable message wall signs. 
 
Mr. Gumusmas said that he did not go around and look for wall signs.  Mr. Gumusmas 
also explained that the reason they need a 40 square foot sign is because for every inch 
of lettering you would need 10’ of viewing distance.   A 20 square foot sign would have 
dictated letters that are 24” tall and would give 200’ of viewing distance.  In order for this 
sign to be visible across Big Beaver the letters would have to be 30” tall.    
 
Mr. Zacks stated that he did not drive the entire City looking for changeable message 
signs but does believe that if the brightness was set at 50% power it would be 
appropriate. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the manufacturer’s specifications indicate that there is both an 
automatic and manual setting as well as an “ambient light sensor”. 
 
Mr. Zacks said that was correct but the maximum brightness would be 50%. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          OCTOBER 7, 2009 

3 
 

Mr. Stimac said that ambient light sensors will be at 50% capacity and would 
automatically adjust depending on how dark it is outside. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the sign would be reduced during non-working hours. 
 
Mr. Gumusmas said that the sign can be set on a timer and would shut off at midnight 
and go on at 6 AM. 
 
Mr. Zacks stated that the timer can be regulated. 
 
Mr. Evans stated that Norm’s Field of Dreams has a changeable message wall sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked how many changeable wall signs Bright Star has installed. 
 
Mr. Zacks stated that the majority of these signs are either ground signs or pylon signs 
in order to get maximum exposure.   
 
Mr. Stimac asked if the petitioner thought a changeable wall sign that would require a 
driver to look at it at a 90 degree angle could be considered a traffic hazard. 
 
Mr. Zacks stated that in Livonia the messages cannot change for one minute and he 
does not believe it would be considered an obvious distraction.  Mr. Zacks also stated 
that the message could remain on the screen for a longer period of time if that is what 
the Board required. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what would happen if another tenant moved into this space. 
 
Mr. Gumusmas stated that he had received a letter from the property manager of 
Redico and that letter stipulates that if Prlanta Jewelers were to vacate the space, the 
sign would have to be removed and the area returned to its original condition. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he thinks this sign would need to be monitored by the Director 
of Building and Zoning, or his designee to determine that the sign is not a detriment to 
the area. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he is aware of a City’s sign ordinance that states that the City 
Manager has to approve what the brightness of the sign has to be.  Mr. Stimac also said 
that he is not positive that 50% is the right number for the brightness of the sign. 
 
Mr. Evans stated that he had received complaints on one of the changeable message 
signs and had contacted the property owner and the issue has been resolved. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the City would have the authority to go back to the property owner 
and explain that there have been complaints regarding the brightness of the sign. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          OCTOBER 7, 2009 

4 
 

Mr. Gumusmas stated that they are more than willing to work with the City regarding the 
illumination of the sign. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that the petitioner is willing to set the brightness at any level and asked 
if it would be appropriate for the Board to designate a person or method that would set 
the brightness level on this type of sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it could be done.  If the illumination was set the same on two 
different messages one of the messages could appear brighter than the other. The sign 
setting on the computer might say 50% but the sign could actually be brighter.  Mr. 
Stimac said that it would also be possible to include a maximum of 50% brightness 
subject to the approval of the Director of Building and Zoning. 
 
Mr. Evans stated that the applicants could provide City staff information of how the 
setting affects perceived brightness. 
 
Mr. Gumusmas stated that red is too much at 50% or black is too much at 30%.  Mr. 
Gumusmas said that they would be willing to work with the city and would be willing to 
make other changes down the line. 
 
Mr. Evans said that there is also a different visual effect with snow covering the ground. 
 
Mr. Nelson made a comment about the sign at Zion Church stating that when it was 
originally installed it was extremely bright.  There were a number of complaints and the 
brightness has been adjusted. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that originally it was his opinion that when the sign was first installed it 
was operating at 50% but without the ambient light sensor and now the sign has added 
that option.   
 
Mr. Nelson said that red is too bright on this type of sign and asked what percentage the 
ambient light sensor would go down to. 
 
Mr. Zacks said that it is automatically set at 50%. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to grant Prlanta Jewelers, 888 W. Big Beaver, relief of Chapter 85 to install a 
43.5 square foot electronic changeable message tenant wall sign where Section 
85.02.05 (c) (3) limits the size of tenant wall signs in the Office Zoning District to not 
more than 20 square feet in area. 
 

 Initially setting should be at a maximum of 50% illumination. 
 That the sign will also incorporate a light sensor that will further dim the sign 

based upon ambient illumination. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                          OCTOBER 7, 2009 

5 
 

 Director of Building and Zoning or his designee will work with the petitioner to set 
an appropriate illumination level for the community. 

 The sign shall meet all other City of Troy regulations. 
 Each message will be displayed no less than sixty (60) seconds. 
 Petitioner will cooperate with City Staff regarding any complaints that come in 

regarding the brightness of the sign. 
 Sign will be removed at the time Prlanta Jewelers vacates this site per the 

landlord’s requirements. 
 
Yeas:   4 – Nelson, Richnak, Stimac, Zuazo 
Absent:  1 – Dziurman 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:17 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
       William Nelson, Vice-Chair 
 
 
 
              
       Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             OCTOBER 12, 2009  

 Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, October 
12, 2009 in the Lower Level Conference Room, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Committee member Patrick C. Hall called the meeting to order a7 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
Roll Call 
 
 PRESENT:  W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
     
 ABSENT:  Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 ALSO PRESENT: Officer James Feld  

Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Dane Lepola, student representative 

    Pat Gladysz 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Ehlert 
 
Resolution #LC2009-10-016  
Moved by Payne 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee member Ehlert at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of October 12, 2009 be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of September 14, 2009 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2009-10-017 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the September 14, 2009 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be APPROVED. 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01c



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             OCTOBER 12, 2009  

 Page 2 of 3 

 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. Square Lake – Livernois Business Inc., 5997 Livernois, Troy MI 48098, 

Oakland County requests new SDM License with Gas Pumps {MLCC Req. 
#518636}. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Majid Elias. 
 
Officer Feld informed the Committee that all Building Department and Fire 
Department inspections were approved.  Assistant City Attorney Lancaster 
informed the Committee that an inventory was received from the applicant and is 
in compliance with the City Ordinance. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-10-018 
Moved by Ogg 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Square Lake-Livernois Business, Inc., for a new SDM license with gas pumps be 
APPROVED.   
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert  
 
 
 
 
Officer Feld updated the Committee on the following informational items: 
 
Grand Azteca V Inc. 
Application has been made to transfer a Class C license from Rochester Hills and 
interviews are being conducted by the Building Department. 
 
Simbad Inc.  
Application has been made to transfer a Class C license from Southfield. 
 
NKG Business, Inc.  
Application has been made to transfer license from Buscemi’s. 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             OCTOBER 12, 2009  

 Page 3 of 3 

 
Fine Wine Distributors, Inc. 
A wholesale license has been requested. 
 
Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, LLC  
Ocean Prime restaurant is requesting to enlarge their outdoor service area.  This 
request was originally made in the spring of this year, but they chose to delay the 
project until the patio would be closed for the season.   
 
Space Station 
This is a Marathon gas station at 3410 Rochester is requesting a SDM and SDD 
license. 
 
 
Officer Feld introduced student representative Dane Lepola. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patrick C. Hall, Committee Member 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



campbellld
Text Box
M-01d





PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 27, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on October 27, 2009 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds John J. Tagle 
Michael W. Hutson Mark J. Vleck 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA) 
Adrienne Milner, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Edmunds requested to add the Transit Center on the agenda for discussion, as 
Agenda item 6.a. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-087 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised. 
 
Yes:  All present (7) 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. MINUTES 
 

Resolution # PC-2009-10-088 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the October 6, 2009 Special/Study and 
October 13, 2009 Regular meetings as submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 27, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 
5. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 239) – 

Amendment to Article 28, Used Automobile Sales and Indoor Commercial Auctions 
in M-1 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment relating 
to used automobile sales and indoor commercial auctions in the M-1 zoning district.  
Mr. Savidant asked for comment and direction on the proposed draft language. 
 
Discussion followed, and it was determined to make the following revisions to the 
draft language: 
 
 Re-word condition #4 under Used Automobile Sales.  Add word “other” before 

“used automobile sales facilities”; and clarify relationship of existing dealerships 
that sell used vehicles as an accessory use.   

 Address parking under Automobile Auctions.  Require petitioner to provide 
parking plan and/or loading and unloading plan.  Create minimum parking 
standard.  Define vehicle in terms of license and movability. 

 Create third category to address commercial and industrial vehicles.   
 

 
6. POTENTIAL PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN APPROVAL (File Number SP 954) – AT&T 

Wireless Facility at Troy Lanes, South Side of Square Lake Road, West of John R 
(1950 E. Square Lake), Section 11, Zoned B-2 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the procedure for site plan approval of the proposed site 
plan application, noting the petitioner must seek a variance from the Board of 
Zoning Appeals (BZA). 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report.  He 
addressed the site plan approval process in relation to the petitioner seeking a 
variance from the BZA.  Mr. Branigan cited deficiencies with the site plan 
application, which he indicated should be addressed prior to coming back to the 
Planning Commission should the setback variance be granted.  Mr. Branigan 
recommended that the Planning Commission postpone action on the item to allow 
the petitioner to pursue the required variance from the BZA. 
 
Mr. Maxwell presented and identified photographs he took of an existing monopine 
tower located at Quarton and Woodward as well as the proposed location to place a 
monopine. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 27, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Wally Haley of Haley Law Firm, 8065 Grand River, Brighton, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Haley addressed the deficiencies noted in the 
Planning Consultant report, landscaping, parking and maneuvering lanes, and other 
tower locations. 
 
Mr. Haley’s PowerPoint presentation outlined the following: 
 The wireless industry. 
 Search area objective. 
 Monopine location. 
 Site plan. 
 Tower elevation. 
 Photosimulations of proposed site from various directional views. 
 Existing monopine tower at Manresa Jesuit Retreat House at Quarton and 

Woodward. 
 
The Planning Commission requested the following site plan revisions, should the 
application continue through the approval process: 
 Designate height / context of existing trees in relation to tower. 
 Monopine tower preferred. 
 Eliminate “Flynn Park” title. 

 
 

6.a. TROY-BIRMINGHAM MULTI-MODAL TRANSIT CENTER 
 
There was general discussion on the status and site plan approval process of the 
Troy-Birmingham Multi-modal Transit Center.   
 
Members Edmunds and Strat expressed concerns with the size of the building, 
maintenance of the facility, construction costs, site plan approval process, and 
return on LEED investments. 
 
Mr. Savidant reminded the members that the Planning Commission is a 
recommending body only in the site plan approval process of the transit center.  He 
suggested that the body as a whole make a recommendation they feel is 
appropriate as relates to the site plan design.  Mr. Savidant encouraged members 
to forward any questions and concerns in writing to him within the next week.  Mr. 
Savidant also addressed his attendance at recent transit center meetings and 
meeting minutes. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 27, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
Mr. Maxwell addressed his interest in researching anti-smoking legislation in 
Michigan.  He indicated a desire to give a presentation to the Commission in the 
future on anti-smoking legislation and its economic impact. 
 
Messrs. Branigan and Savidant commented briefly on innovative approaches to 
parking. 
 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2009 PC Minutes\Draft\10-27-09 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 27, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on October 27, 2009 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds John J. Tagle 
Michael W. Hutson Mark J. Vleck 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA) 
Adrienne Milner, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mr. Edmunds requested to add the Transit Center on the agenda for discussion, as 
Agenda item 6.a. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-087 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as revised. 
 
Yes:  All present (7) 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. MINUTES 
 

Resolution # PC-2009-10-088 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the October 6, 2009 Special/Study and 
October 13, 2009 Regular meetings as submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Tagle, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 27, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 
5. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 239) – 

Amendment to Article 28, Used Automobile Sales and Indoor Commercial Auctions 
in M-1 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment relating 
to used automobile sales and indoor commercial auctions in the M-1 zoning district.  
Mr. Savidant asked for comment and direction on the proposed draft language. 
 
Discussion followed, and it was determined to make the following revisions to the 
draft language: 
 
 Re-word condition #4 under Used Automobile Sales.  Add word “other” before 

“used automobile sales facilities”; and clarify relationship of existing dealerships 
that sell used vehicles as an accessory use.   

 Address parking under Automobile Auctions.  Require petitioner to provide 
parking plan and/or loading and unloading plan.  Create minimum parking 
standard.  Define vehicle in terms of license and movability. 

 Create third category to address commercial and industrial vehicles.   
 

 
6. POTENTIAL PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN APPROVAL (File Number SP 954) – AT&T 

Wireless Facility at Troy Lanes, South Side of Square Lake Road, West of John R 
(1950 E. Square Lake), Section 11, Zoned B-2 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the procedure for site plan approval of the proposed site 
plan application, noting the petitioner must seek a variance from the Board of 
Zoning Appeals (BZA). 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the Planning Consultant report.  He 
addressed the site plan approval process in relation to the petitioner seeking a 
variance from the BZA.  Mr. Branigan cited deficiencies with the site plan 
application, which he indicated should be addressed prior to coming back to the 
Planning Commission should the setback variance be granted.  Mr. Branigan 
recommended that the Planning Commission postpone action on the item to allow 
the petitioner to pursue the required variance from the BZA. 
 
Mr. Maxwell presented and identified photographs he took of an existing monopine 
tower located at Quarton and Woodward as well as the proposed location to place a 
monopine. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 27, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Wally Haley of Haley Law Firm, 8065 Grand River, Brighton, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Haley addressed the deficiencies noted in the 
Planning Consultant report, landscaping, parking and maneuvering lanes, and other 
tower locations. 
 
Mr. Haley’s PowerPoint presentation outlined the following: 
 The wireless industry. 
 Search area objective. 
 Monopine location. 
 Site plan. 
 Tower elevation. 
 Photosimulations of proposed site from various directional views. 
 Existing monopine tower at Manresa Jesuit Retreat House at Quarton and 

Woodward. 
 
The Planning Commission requested the following site plan revisions, should the 
application continue through the approval process: 
 Designate height / context of existing trees in relation to tower. 
 Monopine tower preferred. 
 Eliminate “Flynn Park” title. 

 
 

6.a. TROY-BIRMINGHAM MULTI-MODAL TRANSIT CENTER 
 
There was general discussion on the status and site plan approval process of the 
Troy-Birmingham Multi-modal Transit Center.   
 
Members Edmunds and Strat expressed concerns with the size of the building, 
maintenance of the facility, construction costs, site plan approval process, and 
return on LEED investments. 
 
Mr. Savidant reminded the members that the Planning Commission is a 
recommending body only in the site plan approval process of the transit center.  He 
suggested that the body as a whole make a recommendation they feel is 
appropriate as relates to the site plan design.  Mr. Savidant encouraged members 
to forward any questions and concerns in writing to him within the next week.  Mr. 
Savidant also addressed his attendance at recent transit center meetings and 
meeting minutes. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAUSTUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 27, 2009 

8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 

Mr, Maxwell addressed his interest in researching anti-smoking legislation in 
Michigan, He indicated a desire to give a presentation to the Commission in the 
future on anti-smoking legislation and its economic impact. 

Messrs. Branigan and Savidant commented briefly on innovative approaches to 
parking. 

ADJOURN 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:20 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Kathy L CzarneciW, Recording Secretary 

G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2009 PC Minutes\Final\1()"'27~09 Special Study Meetln9-FinaLdoc 

-4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 4, 2009 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, November 4, 2009 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Bill Nelson 
   Michael Pylar 
   Tim Richnak 
   Mark Stimac 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Paul Evans, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
   Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF OCTOBER 7, 2009 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of October 7, 2009 as written. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Nelson, Richnak, Stimac, Dziurman 
Abstain: 1 – Pylar 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  JEFF JOHNSON, HARMON SIGNS, 3946-3978 
ROCHESTER, ROCHESTER SQUARE, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 200 square 
foot ground sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 200 
square foot ground sign with a proposed 5’ setback from the planned street right of way.  
Table 85.02.05 of the Sign Ordinance requires ground signs over 100 square feet in 
size to be setback more than 30’ from the planned street right of way. 
 
Mr. Jeff Johnson, of Harmon Signs was present and stated that they are requesting a 
variance due to the fact that the existing sign would have to be relocated due to the 
road widening project.  They are also planning to upgrade the existing twenty year old 
sign.  Mr. Johnson said that they cannot meet the required setback as there is a row of 
trees and the visibility of the sign would be lost. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked the petitioner if the top of the sign was a changeable message sign.  
Mr. Johnson said that it was and Mr. Stimac asked who would control the messages on 
that part of the sign. 
 
Mr. Johnson stated that the landlord would have control of the changeable messages. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01g



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 4, 2009 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if the tenants would have the opportunity to bid on that part of the sign 
and also asked where the controller would be kept. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that all of the tenants would have this part of the sign available to 
them by bids and the controller would be kept in the landlord’s office. 
 
Mr. Nelson expressed concern that the location of the new sign will create an 
obstruction for traffic leaving the center and asked if the sign could be moved further 
back from the road. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that they could move it back but they can’t move it too far as it would 
be hidden by the existing trees. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if the sign could be moved farther south to reduce the traffic 
interference and Mr. Johnson stated that there are also a number of existing trees in 
that location. 
 
Mr. Nelson said that he was still very concerned that the proposed sign will cause an 
obstruction and Mr. Dziurman agreed that the view of traffic leaving the center will be 
obscured. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that the drawing of the proposed sign doesn’t show the location of 
the sidewalk.  Everyone that comes out of this drive will only be allowed to make a right 
hand turn and Mr. Richnak agrees with the concerns regarding visibility.  Mr. Richnak 
believes that the sign should be moved at least 1’ farther east or moved farther to the 
south.  Drivers will be focused on traffic heading northbound and the proposed location 
could create a hazard. 
 
Mr. Nelson concurred, agreeing that the sign should be moved east at least one foot. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that they are maintaining the 4’ easement and the placement of the 
sign is about the same distance east as the existing sign.  Mr. Johnson said that he was 
not sure that moving the sign farther south would make a difference.  If the Board 
wanted them to move the sign 1’ east, they would be willing to do that. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the distance of the sign to the curb will be much shorter than the 
existing sign.  Mr. Johnson stated that it would definitely be much closer. 
 
Mr. Nelson said that the proposed sign is 12’ wide and believes will create an 
obstruction.  Mr. Nelson asked how far the sign could be moved to the east. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that he believes it makes more sense to move the sign farther south 
rather than east. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 4, 2009 

3 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked how far south they could move the sign.  Mr. Johnson said that 
because of the existing trees, they could only move the sign 3’ or 4’. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that due to the concerns of the Board members it may be better to 
postpone this item until the next scheduled meeting so that the petitioner could stake 
out both possibilities and the Board members could go back to the site to determine 
what impact this sign would have. 
 
Mr. Johnson stated that would be acceptable as long as the existing sign was allowed to 
remain. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that he does not believe that road demolition is starting until February 
or March so that would not be an issue. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Stimac 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Jeff Johnson, Harmon Signs 3946-3978 Rochester, 
Rochester Square, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 200 square foot ground sign until 
the meeting of December 2, 2009. 
 

 To allow the petitioner the opportunity to stake out the current proposed location. 
 To allow the petitioner the opportunity to also stake out any alternate locations 

that could be considered. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF DECEMBER 2, 
2009 CARRIED. 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DIVYA GUNDARAM, 1206 HARTLAND, for 
relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ high privacy fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ 
high privacy fence located 5’ from the west property line along Daley.  This property is a  
double front corner lot.  It has front yard requirements along both Hartland and Daley.  
Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in front yards to not more than 30”. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 4, 2009 

4 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mrs. Divya Gundaram was present and stated that they wished to put up this fence not 
only for privacy but also to provide safety for her children and dog.  A lot of trash blows 
across the street and Mrs. Gundaram is hoping that the fence will prevent it from 
coming into the yard.  In addition there are a number of teen agers that cut across their 
property.  Mrs. Gundaram brought in seven (7) letters indicating approval of this 
request. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals and one (1) written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that although right now the sidewalk stops before a wall, in the future 
the sidewalk will be expanded and putting a fence south and east to the sidewalk will 
create an obstruction.  Mr. Stimac said that at the time this subdivision was platted an 
easement was designated for the continuation of the sidewalk.  If the fence is located 
along Daley with a jog it would create a problem. 
 
Mrs. Gundaram said that she would not have a problem if the fence was located straight 
along Daley. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked how far the proposed fence was from the sidewalk and Mrs. 
Gundaram said that it was one foot.  Mr. Stimac asked if she would have a problem 
moving the fence farther east. 
 
Mrs. Gundaram said that there are a lot of trees in this area which could create a 
problem. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked where the separation wall lines up with the right of way. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the sidewalk ends at the southwest corner of this lot and right now 
it is heading toward a wall.  
 
Mr. Nelson said that if the fence was located straight back it would not have an impact 
on the sidewalk. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that there would not be an issue putting a sidewalk in to the south and 
would be able to be installed in that location. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked the petitioner what type of privacy fence she is proposing to install. 
 
Mrs. Gundaram said that originally they had wanted to install a vinyl privacy fence, but 
the cost is too high, and now they are planning to put up a wooden fence. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 4, 2009 

5 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it appears that there is a line of trees that have been planted in the 
middle of the yard on the east side of the house.  These trees will be growing much 
larger and Mr. Stimac questioned the usability of the yard in this area.  It looks as 
though there is about a 10’ to 12’ area between the trees and the sidewalk and asked 
the petitioner if she would be willing to move the fence farther back. 
 
Mrs. Gundaram said that this is one of the areas that people walk through and they 
would like to prevent this from happening. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that there is line of trees running north and south between sidewalk 
and the end of the garage, and because of this that area of the yard will probably not be 
used.  Mr. Richnak asked if the petitioner had looked at requesting a fence on the east 
side of the trees. 
 
Mrs. Gundaram said that they are planning to remove some of the trees. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that he would like to see what the petitioner is planning to do as he 
would be opposed to putting up a fence and removing a natural barrier. 
 
Mrs. Gundaram asked how far the Board would like her to move the fence. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that he would like to have the fence on the east side of the trees.  
These trees will provide great screening for this property.  From the pictures presented 
Mr. Richnak said that these trees will grow together.  Mr. Richnak also stated that it is 
very difficult for him to authorize a variance when there is nothing to protect the 
neighborhood from the appearance of a privacy fence. 
 
Mrs. Gundaram said that there are a number of sprinkler heads in this area and they 
would have to move them if the fence was required to be moved farther back. 
 
Mr. Nelson said that if the fence was brought in 6’ or 8’ there would be a requirement 
that some type of landscaping be added between the sidewalk and the fence to aid in 
screening the fence. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the petitioner would be willing to move fence back 6’ to 8’.  The 
fence would have to be inside of the tree line to soften the impact of the fence. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that the fence would be moved 6’ east of the sidewalk and this Board 
could require an evergreen type of landscaping to soften the look of the fence. 
 
Mrs. Gundaram asked if the Board wanted them to remove some of the trees and Mr. 
Dziurman said that they did not wish the petitioner to do this, but to move the fence 
back 6’ to 8’ from the sidewalk. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 4, 2009 

6 
 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that he could not approve the location of the fence along the sidewalk.  
He believes this is a safety issue and does not like the starkness of a fence.  Mr. 
Richnak would like it moved back at least 6’ and landscaping added to soften the look of 
the fence. 
 
Mrs. Gundaram asked the Board if they would be willing to allow them to erect the fence 
4’ from the sidewalk. 
 
Mr. Dziurman informed the petitioner that the Board would like the fence moved back 6’ 
and additional landscaping added. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked the petitioner if she wanted this request postponed until the 
December meeting to allow her to determine what impact moving the fence back would 
have on her property. 
 
Mrs. Gundaram said that they would be willing to move the fence back 6’. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Divya Gundaram, 1206 Hartland, relief of Chapter 83 to install a 6’ 
high privacy fence. 
 

 Fence is to be moved back 6’ from the sidewalk or suggested line of sidewalk. 
 Evergreen type screening will be provided by the petitioner, 4’ on center spaced, 

and a minimum of 3’ – 4’ tall at the time of planting. 
 Select plants that will mature to a 4’ width. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MARK ZOLTOWSKI, ART ONE SIGNS, 5903-
5953 JOHN R, EMERALD LAKES PLAZA, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 10’ tall 32 
square foot ground sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to erect a 
10’ tall 32 square foot ground sign.  This property is zoned B-2.  Chapter 85.02.05 (C) 
(4) of the Sign Code allows two ground signs.  Currently there are two ground signs on  
the property; the first measures 420 square feet in area; the second measures 23 
square feet in area.  This request exceeds the number of ground signs allowed. 
 
Mr. Carl Dallo, Art One Sign, Mr. Frank Mediati owner of Emerald Lakes Plaza, and the 
owner of Carl’s Liquor Store were present.  Mr. Dallo stated that because of the location  



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 4, 2009 

7 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
of this store, it appears to be a separate building and the only sign they have right now 
is the large Plaza identification sign.  The petitioner would like to put up this additional 
sign closer to the store to allow greater visibility for people driving by on John R. and 
Square Lake. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the existing sign would be taken down and Mr. Dallo stated that it 
would not be removed. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that this is basically a convenience store for the neighborhood and 
asked what percentage of customers were repeat customers. 
 
The owner of the store stated that he believed the percentage was quite low. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the proposed sign appears to have six lines of advertising and 
asked what that space would be used for. 
 
Mr. Dallo said that it is made up of changeable letters and the use would be determined 
by the landlord. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if Mr. Dallo knew what type of advertising would be put in this space. 
 
Mr. Dallo said that it could be used to advertise vacant space. 
 
Mr. Stimac then asked if this area was individual letters or if each space was a 
changeable panel.  Mr. Dallo said that they are made up of changeable panels. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that if the hardship is visibility in his opinion, this part of the sign could 
be eliminated as advertising would not be needed. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Jim Atwall, 2050 Oakwood, was present and stated that he owns property across 
the street and is also president of the homeowners association in the nearby 
subdivision.  Mr. Atwall stated that they are concerned about this shopping center.  Both 
ends of this strip mall have illuminated signs that change color every minute.  Mr. Atwall 
said that in his opinion this area looks like Las Vegas. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if these signs were on the inside of the glass. 
 
Mr. Atwall said that they are very large signs on the facades of the building.  The large 
sign on the corner of Square Lake and John R. was to let people know what stores were 
in the shopping center.  There is a sign for a dentist’s office on the south side of this 
area that is illuminated until 1:00 A.M.  Mr. Atwall said that there is already more than 
enough signage and he believes that the sign on the front of this location has letters that  



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 4, 2009 

8 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
are 2 ½’ high and about 15’ long and change color every minute.  This is a residential 
area and should be kept as such.  Mr. Atwall also gave examples of other shopping 
centers in Troy that do not have signage that is this extensive. 
 
Mr. Mediati, owner of Emerald Lakes Plaza said that there is only one ground sign on 
the site and the other real estate sign is permitted annually.  A secondary sign on the 
southern portion of the site would be a welcome addition as the problem is visibility for 
this store.  All signs have been done to Code and Mr. Mediati objects to this site being 
compared to Las Vegas. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked how many vacant spaces were available on this site and Mr. Mediati 
said that there were two.  Mr. Stimac asked if they would have access to the main sign 
and Mr. Mediati said that they would. 
 
No one else wished to speak and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one written objection on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the advertising at the bottom of the sign was necessary.   
 
Mr. Dallo said that they would put whatever this Board wanted at the bottom of the sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is asking for a third ground sign, which is not 
permitted by the Ordinance, and stated that if the justification for the third ground sign is 
identification, then advertising is not needed. 
 
Mr. Dallo said that if the landlord would allow them to remove these panels, they would 
remove them. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked what the size of the advertising element of the sign is.  Mr. Dallo said 
that he believes it is about 4’.  Mr. Nelson said that if the advertising portion of the sign 
was removed, the remaining sign would be approximately 4’ x 4’.  The petitioner does 
not need the advertising if their hardship is identification. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the “for lease” sign would remain.   
 
Mr. Stimac stated that he was not opposed to a property owner or a landlord having a 
“for lease” sign, but does have difficulty with this Board granting a variance to advertise 
lease space.  The existing “for lease” sign is permitted. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked how long the “for lease” sign has been on the property and Mr. 
Mediati said that it has been there for a few years. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 4, 2009 

9 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Atwall said that the dentist office to the south of this parcel has a sign that is 6’ x 10’ 
very close to the property line.   
 
Mr. Dziurman explained that that property is not part of this shopping center or this 
request. 
 
Mr. Dallo said that they would be willing to remove the bottom part of the sign.  The 
main purpose of this third sign is identification. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if there was wall signage on this building.  The owner of the store said 
that there is a sign on the east side of the building but people going by can’t find them. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what the size of the sign was on the face of the building.  Mr. Atwall 
said that he believes that the letters are 2 ½’ high by 15’ long.  The sign changes colors 
every minute.  The owner of the store said that the colors used are very soft. 
 
Mr. Nelson said that he would like to see this request postponed to allow him the 
opportunity to go back out to this location to see exactly what kind of signage is in place.  
Mr. Nelson said that he has a tough time believing that people can’t find this store.   
 
Mr. Stimac asked if there was anything between the store and John R. that would block 
the view from John R.  Mr. Stimac said that he agrees with Chief Nelson that a third 
ground sign would not significantly increase the visibility of this space. 
 
Mr. Dallo said that there is landscaping in the middle of an island on the site.  Mr. 
Stimac said that he did not believe that would affect this location.  Mr. Dallo then said 
that there are a number of trees along John R. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that he does not believe that people have any problem locating this 
building.  If someone is looking for something in this shopping center the sign on the 
corner is obvious and the location is on the corner of two major streets.  Mr. Richnak 
said that he also believes that 99% of the people driving in this area are the same 
people that drive through here every day.  Mr. Richnak said that in his opinion the main 
sign is very cluttered, but that there is enough space on that sign to identify everybody 
in this center. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if there was any thought given to putting the “for lease” information on 
the existing 424 square foot sign and eliminating the second ground sign.  Mr. Mediati 
said that was a possibility.  Mr. Stimac explained that if the “for lease” ground sign was 
eliminated, the ground sign the petitioner is requesting would be allowed without a 
variance. 
 
Motion by Stimac 
Supported by Richnak 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 4, 2009 

10 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Mark Zoltowski, Art One Signs, 5903-5953 John R, 
Emerald Lakes Plaza, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 10’ tall 32 square foot ground 
sign until the meeting of December 2, 2009. 
 

 To allow the petitioner and the owner of the property to determine if there are 
other considerations available to them that could eliminate the need for a 
variance. 

 To allow the Board members the opportunity to review the other signage on the 
site. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF DECEMBER 2, 
2009 CARRIED 
 
Mr. Mediati asked if he would need to come back to this Board if he wished to put up 
another “for lease” ground sign. 
 
Mr. Evans explained that the Ordinance permits two 6 square foot “for lease” temporary 
ground signs. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:55 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
              
       Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
   



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             NOVEMBER 9, 2009  

 Page 1 of 4 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, November 
9, 2009 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver 
Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
Roll Call 
 
 PRESENT:  Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
         
 ABSENT:  Andrew Kaltsounis 

Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
 
 ALSO PRESENT: Officer James Feld  

Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Lauren Harden, student representative 
Dane Lepola, student representative 

    Pat Gladysz  
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Kaltsounis and Ukrainec 
 
Resolution #LC2009-11-019 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee members Kaltsounis and Ukrainec at 
the Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of November 9, 2009 be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0  
Absent: Kaltsounis, Ukrainec 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of October 12, 2009 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2009-11-020 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Payne 
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01h



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             NOVEMBER 9, 2009  

 Page 2 of 4 

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the October 12, 2009 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0  
Absent: Kaltsounis, Ukrainec 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. Marriott International, Inc. (A Delaware Corporation), 200 West Big 

Beaver, Troy, MI 48084 requests to drop WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A 
Delaware Limited Liability Company) as Co-Licensee and add Sunstone Big 
Beaver Lessee, Inc. (A Delaware Corporation) as Co-Licensee in 2009 B-
Hotel & SDM Licensed Business with Dance-5 Entertainment Permit, Official 
Permit (Food), 8 Bars, and 350 Rooms, located at 200 West Big Beaver, Troy, 
MI 48084, Oakland County: and change Official Food Permit (Food) Hours 
from weekdays, 6:00 A.M. to 7:00 A.M. and Sundays, 7:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M. 
to weekdays, 6:00 A.M. to 7:00 A.M. and Sundays, 6:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M 
{MLCC Req. #519011}. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was attorney Patrick Howe. 
 
Mr. Howe explained that this request is made to update MLCC records due to a 
change in business ownership.  The management of the hotel remains unchanged.  
Also, this request includes a change in the start time of the food service hours.   
 
Officer Feld informed the Committee that all inspections have been approved. 
 
Resolution #LC2009-11-021 
Moved by Godlewski 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Marriott International, Inc. (A Delaware Corporation) 200 West Big Beaver Road, 
Troy, MI 48084 to drop WHP Hotel Owner-2A, L.L.C. (A Delaware Limited Liability 
Company) as Co-Licensee and add Sunstone Big Beaver Lessee, Inc. (A Delaware 
Corporation) as Co-Licensee in 2009 B-Hotel & SDM Licensed Business with Dance-
Entertainment Permit, Official Permit (Food), 8 Bars, and 350 Rooms, located at 200 
West Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County: and to change Official Food 
Permit (Food) Hours from weekdays, 6:00 A.M. to 7:00 A.M. and Sundays, 7:00 A.M. 
to 12:00 P.M. to weekdays, 6:00 A.M. to 7:00 A.M. and Sundays, 6:00 A.M. to 12:00 
P.M be APPROVED. 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             NOVEMBER 9, 2009  

 Page 3 of 4 

Yes:  4 
No:  1  
Absent: Kaltsounis, Ukrainec 
 
 
 

 
2. Grand Azteca V Inc., requests to transfer ownership of 2009 Class C 

Licensed Business, located in escrow at 4856 N. Adams, Rochester, MI 
48306, Oakland Township, Oakland County, From Red Lotus, LLC & transfer 
location (Governmental Unit) (MCL 436L.1531 (1) to 935 East Long Lake Troy, 
MI 48085, Oakland County and request New Official Permit (Food) & SDM 
License {MLCC Req.#524757}. 

  
Present to answer questions from the Committee were owners Silviano Arellano-
Aguaya and Juan Ramos. 
 
The business owners provided the Committee with menus for their five restaurant 
locations.  The Long Lake Road location has approximately 20 booths and the bar is 
located on the left in the rear of the restaurant.  The employee liquor training will be 
obtained through TIPS.   
 
Resolution #LC2009-11-022 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Grand Azteca V Inc., to transfer ownership of 2009 Class C Licensed Business, 
located in escrow at 4856 N. Adams, Rochester, MI 48306, Oakland Township, 
Oakland County, from Red Lotus, LLC, and to transfer location (Governmental Unit) 
(MCL 436L.1531 (1) to 935 East Long Lake Road, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland County, 
and to receive New Official Permit (Food) & SDM License be APPROVED. 
 
Officer Feld informed the Committee that there have been no liquor violations and 
inspections have been approved.   
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0  
Absent: Kaltsounis, Ukrainec 
 
 
 
Student representative Lauren Harden was introduced. 
 
Officer Feld updated the Committee on the following information items: 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             NOVEMBER 9, 2009  

 Page 4 of 4 

NKG Business, Inc.  
Application has been made to transfer license from Buscemi’s. 
 
Fine Wine Distributors, Inc. 
A wholesale license has been requested. 
 
Cameron Mitchell Restaurants, LLC  
Ocean Prime restaurant is requesting to enlarge their outdoor service area.  This 
request was originally made in the spring of this year, but they chose to delay the 
project until the patio would be closed for the season.   
 
Space Station 
This is a Marathon gas station at 3410 Rochester is requesting a SDM and SDD 
license. 
 
Northfield Hilton 
The hotel changed their name to the Ramada Inn approximately nine months ago, 
but was under the same ownership.  It now appears that ownership may have 
recently changed.  DeSoto’s Bar inside the hotel is closed. 
 
 
Officer Feld also informed the Committee that McCormick & Schmick’s Restaurant, 
Hilton Homewood Suites, and Parrot Cove served alcohol to a minor decoy on 
October 28, 2009. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



 1 

LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD - DRAFT November 12, 2009 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy Library Advisory Board was held on Thursday, November 12, 2009, in 
the Small Conference Room of the Troy Public Library. Vice Chair Belinda Shelton Duggan called the 
meeting to order at 7:05 P.M.  

ROLL CALL PRESENT: Belinda Shelton Duggan 
   Kul Gauri 
   Paul Lee, Student Representative 
   Audre Zembrzuski 
   Cathleen Russ, Library Director   
 
Resolution #LB-2009-11-01 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gauri 
 
RESOLVED, That Lynne Gregory and Nancy Wheeler be excused.  
 
Yes: 3—Duggan, Gauri, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 
Resolution #LB-2009-11-02 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gauri 
 
Resolved, that the minutes of the Library Advisory Board meeting, held on Thursday, October 
8, 2009, be approved, with one change. The date of the LAB Special meeting was Thursday, 
October 15th, not the 16th.  
 
Yes: 3—Duggan, Gauri, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #LB-2009-11-03 
Moved by Gauri 
Seconded by Duggan 
 
Resolved, that the minutes of the Special Library Advisory Board meeting, held on Thursday, 
October 15, 2009, be approved, with one change. The meeting was a special meeting, not a 
regular meeting.   
 
Yes: 3—Duggan, Gauri, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
 
Resolution #LB-2009-11-04 
Moved by Gauri 
Seconded by Duggan  
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01i



 2 

RESOLVED, That the agenda for the Thursday, November 12, 2009, meeting, be approved. 
  
Yes: 3—Duggan, Gauri, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT—None 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS—Zembrzuski mentioned that she’d heard that signs were posted at 
the Troy Historical Museum and Nature Center that stated that the building would close if the millage 
didn’t pass. C. Russ has checked on this and found no signs. No such signs are posted at the Troy 
Library.   
 
STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S COMMENTS—P. Lee asked for guidance regarding where to vote 
in the upcoming election. The LAB members directed him to contact the City Clerk’s office.  
 
POSTPONED ITEMS 

A. Drive Up Materials Return—C. Russ updated the LAB members on the status of this project.  
B. Quarterly Statistics—the LAB members reviewed the Quarterly statistics. 
C. Fees Report—C. Russ reviewed the first quarter Fees Report with the LAB members.  

 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Polaris Update—C. Russ updated the LAB members on the progress made with the Polaris 
system, and upcoming projects and goals related to it.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Library Advisory Board Meeting Dates for 2010—B. Duggan will email all LAB members to 
determine a date for the January 2010 board meeting. This will be discussed at the December 
LAB meeting.  

B. 2010 Library Calendar  
 
Resolution #LB-2009-11-05 
Moved by Gauri 
Seconded by Duggan  
 
RESOLVED, To approve the 2010 Library Calendar of Closed Dates.  
 
Yes: 3—Duggan, Gauri, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

C. Approval of Suburban Library Cooperative Plan of Service 
  
Resolution #LB-2009-11-06 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gauri 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the SLC Plan of Service.  
 



 3 

Yes: 3—Duggan, Gauri, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
Director’s Report—was received and filed. A copy will be attached to the minutes of this meeting. C. 
Russ provided a copy of the Library’s Annual Report to the LAB members. Copies will be available in 
the library and on the website as well.  
 
Suburban Library Cooperative Report—B. Duggan is Troy’s representative to the SLC Board. SLC 
is on solid financial footing. Investments will be transferred to credit unions so all are FDIC insured. 
The Macomb County Resource & Reference Center will be an auxiliary member of the SLC. The SLC 
Board is sending a letter of congratulations to Harrison Twp, for starting its own library. The library is 
currently staffed by volunteers.  
 
Friends of the Troy Public Library—C. Russ read the report submitted by the Friends Board. B. 
Duggan expressed that the Friends of TPL are the best friends group she’s ever seen.  
 
Gifts—None 
 
Informational Items 
Website address for Troy Public Library calendar: http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp 
 
VISITORS’ COMMENTS--The LAB members discussed the Visitors’ Comments. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Resolution #LB-2009-11-07 
Moved by Zembrzuski 
Seconded by Gauri 
 
RESOLVED, To adjourn the meeting.  
 
Yes: 3—Duggan, Gauri, Zembrzuski 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Library Board meeting adjourned at 8:26 P.M.  
 
The next regular meeting of the Library Advisory Board is Thursday, December 10, 2009, at 7 pm.  
 
 

 
     
 _____________________________________ 

Belinda Shelton Duggan 
Vice Chairman 
 
 
Cathleen Russ 
Recording Secretary 

http://sl.libcoop.net/troy/lib/eventcalendar.asp


campbellld
Text Box
M-02a









 

 
 
November 9, 2009 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – October 2009  
 
Background 
 
 Resolution #2004-02-075 established the auction fee of 5% and provided approval to use 

BidCorp with the provision that other on-line auction service options would be considered.  
BidNet moved forward and implemented an on-line surplus auction service for the MITN 
System (Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network), which can be accessed through 
the City of Troy home web page.  MITN is the official e-procurement website used by the 
City for posting bids, tabulations, quotations, and award information. It was a Purchasing 
goal that one e-procurement site would be operational for all functions. 

 
 
Financial Considerations 
 
 In compliance with Resolution #2004-02-075, final reporting is being presented for one 

(1) Panasonic fax machine, one (1) HP Scanjet 4C, one (1) lot of A/V accessories, one 
(1) Brinks safe, one (1) lot of games and CD’s, one (1) amplifier, four (4) Dell computers, 
one (1) Leader Waveform monitor, one (1) Yasha multi effect processor, one (1) JVC AV 
selector, one (1) lot of cables, one (1) cash register, one (1) palm, one (1) Magnavox 
escot VHS camera,  one (1) Quasar VHS camera, one (1) lot of self defense bags, one 
(1) Denon CD player, one (1) ESE timer, one (1) Phillips CDR CD recorder, one (1) 
Ptimus VCR, one (1) Telex audiocom, one (1) 2 channel compressor/limiter, one (1) 
Furman headphone monitor amplifier, one (1) Mackie 16 channel mixer, one (1) Coach 
eyeglasses, and one (1) Panasonic recorder that were auctioned on-line through BidNet, 
the City’s e-procurement website, from September 22, 2009 and closed on, October 5, 
2009.   

 
 Final reporting is also being presented for three (3) Ford Crown Vics, one (1) Chevrolet 

Tahoe, one (1) Plymouth Breeze, one (1) GMC Safari van, and one (1) GMC Savana 
cargo van that were auctioned on-line through BidNet, the City’s e-procurement website, 
from October 5, 2009 and closed on October 13, 2009.    

 
1 of 2 

              CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-02b



November 9, 2009 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – October, 2009  
         
 
Financial Considerations - continued 
 
Final sale amounts and fees are listed below:     
DESCRIPTION PROCEEDS SUB-TOTAL NET INCOME 
(4) Dell computers, safe, cash register, cameras, &  
Media equipment, etc  

    
$        1,657.77               

(3) Ford Vics, (1) Chevy Tahoe, (2) Vans, and (1)   
Plymouth          31,490.00   

 5% Buyers’ premium – for Auction Fees           1,574.50   
    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:  $34,722.27  
 FEES:   
5% (Computers, safe, cameras, etc.) Fee $        ($82.93)     
5% on Vehicles (paid back thru buyer’s premium)        (1,574.50)   
10 featured items for vehicles @ $5.00 each             (50.00)  

 

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:  ($1,707.43)  
Sales Tax +6% (-(4) computers, safe, cameras, etc): $            99.50   
Sales Tax (None on Vehicle):                  0.00   

    

                                                             SUB-TOTAL:  $    99.50  
 

   

      $ 33,114.34 
 
Legal Considerations 
 
 Farmington Hills, Michigan was the lead agency for the bid process for an on-line 

auction website.  Resolution #2004-02-075. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
 Sale of surplus property is a statutory requirement of the Purchasing Department. 

(Chapter 7, Sec 8), no perceived Policy consideration is associated with this item.  
 

Options 
 
 To report final results of October 2009 auctions to City management. 
 
 No action required 
 
 
 
 
G:Agenda-Final Reporting-BidNet on line– October 09  

2 of 2 



 

MITN Auctions National Auctions 

  Auctions Main 
Menu   

  HELP/FAQ     Contact Support   MITN Admin 
Menu 

 
 

Report for the City of Troy, MI   

Detailed Report for Seller: ALL   

Reported on 10/31/2009 From: 10/1/2009  To: 10/31/2009 

Item ID  Date Sale Amount Tax Collected Charge Type of Fee  Auction Description Seller  

3766 10/5/2009 5.00 0.30 0.25 Sale  Panasonic Fax Machine Bockstanz   
4733 10/5/2009 6.50 0.39 0.33 Sale  HP ScanJet 4C Bockstanz   
5619 10/5/2009 5.25 0.32 0.26 Sale  A/V Accessories Bockstanz   
5601 10/5/2009 83.00 4.98 4.15 Sale  Brinks Safe Bockstanz   
5623 10/5/2009 22.50 1.35 1.13 Sale  Games and CD's Bockstanz   
5630 10/5/2009 41.00 2.46 2.05 Sale  Amplifier Bockstanz   
5646 10/5/2009 138.50 8.31 6.93 Sale  Dell Computer B390 Bockstanz   
5946 10/5/2009 54.00 3.24 2.70 Sale  Leader Waveform Monitors Bockstanz   
5948 10/5/2009 112.75 6.77 5.64 Sale  Yaaha Multi Effect Processor Bockstanz   
5952 10/5/2009 7.50 0.45 0.38 Sale  JVC AV Selector Bockstanz   
5957 10/5/2009 1.25 0.08 0.06 Sale  Cables Bockstanz   
5959 10/5/2009 24.50 1.47 1.23 Sale  Cash Register Bockstanz   
5960 10/5/2009 69.00 4.14 3.45 Sale  Palm Bockstanz   
5961 10/5/2009 15.50 0.93 0.78 Sale  Magnavox Escot VHS Camera Bockstanz   
5962 10/5/2009 10.50 0.63 0.53 Sale  Quasar VHS Camera Bockstanz   
5963 10/5/2009 48.77 2.93 2.44 Sale  Self Defense Bags Bockstanz   
5981 10/5/2009 31.00 1.86 1.55 Sale  Dell Computer B414 Bockstanz   
5949 10/5/2009 5.00 0.30 0.25 Sale  Denon CD Player Bockstanz   
5969 10/5/2009 28.00 1.68 1.40 Sale  Dell Computer B404 Bockstanz   
5977 10/5/2009 27.50 1.65 1.38 Sale  Dell Computer B410 Bockstanz   
5945 10/5/2009 4.00 0.24 0.20 Sale  ESE Timer Bockstanz   
5947 10/5/2009 21.76 1.31 1.09 Sale  Phillips CDR CD Recorder Bockstanz   
5956 10/5/2009 10.25 0.62 0.51 Sale  Ptimus VCR Bockstanz   
5951 10/5/2009 15.50 0.93 0.78 Sale  Telex Audiocom Bockstanz   
5950 10/5/2009 43.00 2.58 2.15 Sale  2 Channel Compressor/Limiter Bockstanz   
5953 10/5/2009 25.25 1.52 1.26 Sale  Furman Headphone Monitor Amplifier Bockstanz   
5943 10/5/2009 239.00 14.34 11.95 Sale  Mackie 16 Channel Mixer Bockstanz   
5629 10/5/2009 50.00 3.00 2.50 Sale  Coach Eyeglass Bockstanz   
5954 10/5/2009 511.99 30.72 25.60 Sale  Panasonic Recorder Bockstanz   

  

Total Sales 
Amount 

Total Tax 
Collected 

Total Amount 
Charged 

Total 
Payments 

Total Balance Due for the selected 
date range 

Total Balance 
Due 

$1,657.77 $99.50 $82.93 $0.00 $82.93 $82.93 
 

 

https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/default.asp?pid=1�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/natauctions.asp?National=1�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/faq.asp?pid=4�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/feedback.asp?pid=5�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=10&beginyear=2009&endmonth=10&endyear=2009&sortby=id�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=10&beginyear=2009&endmonth=10&endyear=2009&sortby=Date�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=10&beginyear=2009&endmonth=10&endyear=2009&sortby=Type�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=ALL&beginmonth=10&beginyear=2009&endmonth=10&endyear=2009&sortby=Seller�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=3766�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4733�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5619�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5601�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5623�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5630�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5646�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5946�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5948�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5952�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5957�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5959�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5960�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5961�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5962�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5963�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5981�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5949�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5969�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5977�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5945�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5947�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5956�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5951�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5950�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5953�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5943�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5629�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5954�


 

MITN Auctions National Auctions   Auctions Main Menu     HELP/FAQ     Contact Support   MITN Admin Menu 

 
 

Report for the City of Troy, MI   

Detailed Report for Seller: Samuel Lamerato   
Reported on 10/31/2009 From: 10/1/2009  To: 10/31/2009 

 

Item ID Date 

Sale Amount Tax Collected Charge Type of Fee 

Auction Description Seller  

6023 10/5/2009 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  1978 Ford Diesel Tractor W/Broom Equip. #532 Lamerato   
6025 10/5/2009 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  2000 GMC Safari AWD Van - Veh. #920 Lamerato   
6026 10/5/2009 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  1999 Plymouth Breeze - Veh. #174 Lamerato   
6027 10/5/2009 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  2000 Chevrolet Malibu - Veh. #175 Lamerato   
6028 10/5/2009 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  2004 Chevrolet Tahoe 4WD - Veh. #978 Lamerato   
6029 10/5/2009 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  2004 Ford - Crown Victoria - Veh. #981 Lamerato   
6030 10/5/2009 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  1998 Chevrolet 1 Ton Crew Cab - Veh. #227 Lamerato   
6031 10/5/2009 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  2005 Ford Crown Victoria - Veh. #991 Lamerato   
6024 10/5/2009 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  1998 GMC Crew-Cab W/2 1/2 Yard Dump Veh. #410 Lamerato   
6032 10/5/2009 0 0.00 5.00 Featured Item  2000 New Holland Backhoe Model 675E - Equip. #342 Lamerato   
4974 10/13/2009 4,000.00 200.00 200.00 Sale  2005 FORD – CROWN VICTORIA Veh. 990 Lamerato   
4975 10/13/2009 4,050.00 202.50 202.50 Sale  2005 FORD – CROWN VICTORIA Veh. 993 Lamerato   
6028 10/13/2009 7,892.00 394.60 394.60 Sale  2004 Chevrolet Tahoe 4WD - Veh. #978 Lamerato   
6031 10/13/2009 4,095.00 204.75 204.75 Sale  2005 Ford Crown Victoria - Veh. #991 Lamerato   
6026 10/13/2009 3,453.00 172.65 172.65 Sale  1999 Plymouth Breeze - Veh. #174 Lamerato   
6025 10/13/2009 5,100.00 255.00 255.00 Sale  2000 GMC Safari AWD Van - Veh. #920 Lamerato   
5772 10/14/2009 2,900.00 145.00 145.00 Sale  1999 GMC Savana Cargo Van - Veh. #260 Lamerato   

          

Total Sales 
Amount 

Total Tax 
Collected 

Total Amount 
Charged 

Total 
Payments 

Total Balance Due for the selected date 
range 

Total Balance 
Due 

$31,490.00 $1,574.50 $1,624.50 $0.00 $1,624.50 $1,624.50 
 

 

https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/default.asp?pid=1�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/natauctions.asp?National=1�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea.asp?pid=3�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/faq.asp?pid=4�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/feedback.asp?pid=5�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/logoutagency.asp�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=575&beginmonth=10&beginyear=2009&endmonth=10&endyear=2009&sortby=id�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=575&beginmonth=10&beginyear=2009&endmonth=10&endyear=2009&sortby=Date�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=575&beginmonth=10&beginyear=2009&endmonth=10&endyear=2009&sortby=Type�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/myarea-f-detailed.asp?sellerid=575&beginmonth=10&beginyear=2009&endmonth=10&endyear=2009&sortby=Seller�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6023�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6025�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6026�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6027�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6028�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6029�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6030�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6031�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6024�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6032�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4974�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=4975�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6028�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6031�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6026�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=6025�
https://www.govbids.com/scripts/Surplusauctions/itemdetl.asp?id=5772�


VEHICLE AUCTION REPORT 
OCTOBER -2009 

 NUMBER MAKE MODEL YEAR AUCTION FEE   AUCTION PRICE 
 174 PLYMOUTH BREEZE 99 $172.65 $3,453.00 
  
 260 GMC SAVANA\CARGOVAN 99 $145.00 $2,900.00 
 
 920 GMC SAFARI/VAN 4WD 00 $255.00 $5,100.00 
  
 978 CHEVY TAHOE 4WD 4DR 04 $394.60 $7,892.00 
  
 990 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 05 $200.00 $4,000.00 
  
 991 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 05 $204.75 $4,095.00 
  
 993 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 05 $202.50 $4,050.00 
  
          Featured Item Fee ($5.00 X 10)       $50.00 

 TOTALS $1,624.50 $31,490.00 

Note: Auction fee paid by buyer. Featured item fee paid by City. 

          Total income from sale of auction vehicles less featured item fee ($50.00) $31,440.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Fleet  

 Monday, November 09, 2009 Page 1 of 1 



DATE:         November 2, 2009

TO:              John Szerlag, City Manager

FROM:        Mark Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager Economic Development Services
                    Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued October 2009

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 2 $70,000.00 $930.00

Sub Total 2 $70,000.00 $930.00

COMMERCIAL
Tenant Completion 1 $60,000.00 $715.00
Add/Alter 20 $3,163,127.00 $33,820.00
Kiosk 3 $1,500.00 $105.00

Sub Total 24 $3,224,627.00 $34,640.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 4 $711,830.00 $7,600.00
Add/Alter 25 $306,560.00 $4,750.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 6 $70,400.00 $980.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 1 $7,500.00 $175.00
Repair 9 $122,750.00 $2,185.00
Fire Repair 1 $16,206.00 $285.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $70.00

Sub Total 47 $1,235,246.00 $16,045.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 1 $10,000.00 $215.00

Sub Total 1 $10,000.00 $215.00

MULTIPLE
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $7,800.00 $175.00

Sub Total 1 $7,800.00 $175.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 4 $2,051,000.00 $17,900.00

Sub Total 4 $2,051,000.00 $17,900.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
M-02c



MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 27 $0.00 $2,690.00
Fences 4 $0.00 $60.00

Sub Total 31 $0.00 $2,750.00

TOTAL 110 $6,598,673.00 $72,655.00

PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2009
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 118 $1,960.00
Cert. of Occupancy 25 $2,728.00
Plan Review 75 $6,917.00
Microfilm 24 $314.00
Building Permits 110 $72,655.00
Electrical Permits 167 $8,097.00
Heating Permits 124 $5,585.00
Air Cond. Permits 41 $1,630.00
Plumbing Permits 77 $5,514.00
Storm Sewer Permits 16 $588.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 15 $457.00
Sewer Taps 9 $2,064.00

TOTAL 801 $108,509.00

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2009
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 44 $220.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 23 $345.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 18 $90.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 2 $20.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 21 $205.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 1 $15.00

TOTAL 109 $895.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2008 2008 2009 2009

JANUARY 71 $4,678,432.00 66 $5,215,813.00

FEBRUARY 81 $5,464,681.00 39 $2,463,134.00

MARCH 107 $3,480,525.00 76 $3,344,007.00

APRIL 141 $10,518,298.00 95 $3,005,226.00

MAY 161 $4,357,036.00 122 $1,679,112.00

JUNE 161 $8,178,329.00 148 $2,708,849.00

JULY 160 $10,497,107.00 106 $4,158,316.00

AUGUST 122 $15,981,779.00 117 $3,212,653.00

SEPTEMBER 134 $13,136,548.00 113 $3,557,220.00

OCTOBER 114 $3,760,152.00 110 $6,598,673.00

NOVEMBER 109 $35,574,774.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 66 $1,762,444.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1427 $117,390,105.00 992 $35,943,003.00



SUBJECT:  Permits issued July 2009 through June 2010

2004 2004

3 3 1 2 1 1 4 4

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

r r r r

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2009

003 3 1 2 1 1 4 4

0

10

20

30

40

50

60
Ja

nu
ar

y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2009

00



Nov 2, 2009 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2009Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter NICE, DAVID A BUILDERS INC 2801 W BIG BEAVER C-151  150,000
Commercial, Add/Alter KIRCO MANIX 2600 TROY CENTER  757,300
Commercial, Add/Alter PREMIER CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 1050 WILSHIRE 210  130,000
Commercial, Add/Alter KIRCO CONSTRUCTION LLC 201 W BIG BEAVER 1001  120,000
Commercial, Add/Alter JENKINS CONSTRUCTION 2600 W BIG BEAVER LL  950,000
Commercial, Add/Alter INTRACO CORPORATION 530 STEPHENSON  500,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  2,607,300

Religious, Add/Alter REWOLD, FRANK & SON 3955 W SOUTH BOULEVARD  2,000,000

Religious, Add/AlterTotal  2,000,000

Total Valuation:  4,607,300Records  8



campbellld
Text Box
M-03a



campbellld
Text Box
M-05





campbellld
Text Box
M-06



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
DATE: November 3, 2009 
SUBJECT: Certification as IMLA Local Government Fellow 

 
 

Enclosed please find a copy of a plaque, commemorating my recent designation as a 
Local Government Fellow, which has been awarded by the International Municipal Lawyers 
Association (IMLA).   

The IMLA has served as the leading international professional organization dedicated 
to local government attorneys since 1935.  The Local Government Fellows Program was 
established to recognize those municipal attorneys who excel as specialists in the field of 
local government law, and to encourage attorney proficiency and competency in this legal 
field.  IMLA characterizes this prestigious designation as follows: “The Program offers local 
governments a reliable benchmark for determining experienced and knowledgeable 
practicioners.”   

This designation is awarded for a five year period of time, and must be earned for 
each five year increment thereafter.  I was the first Michigan municipal attorney to receive this 
designation in 2004.  It was a great honor to receive this designation for 2009-2014.    

Please let me know if you have any questions.   

campbellld
Text Box
M-07




	AGENDA: November 23, 2009
	COVER MEMO
	PUBLIC AND VISITORS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	C-1 Presentations:
	(a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program (July/August), Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will present a check in the amount of $970.00 to Leader Dogs for the Blind
	(b) National Red Ribbon Campaign – Nancy Morrison, Troy Families for Safe Homes; Student Representatives and Teachers from the Troy School District will be on hand to bring their signed petitions to City Council
	(c) Citizens Academy Class 14 Graduation/Presentation of Certificates to Don Barnes, Craig Chamberlain, Gary Dowen, Tina Dowen, Belinda Duggan, Dan Duggan, Carl Fucinari, Cathy Fucinari, Sue Kazmierczak, Ted Kazmierczak, Beth Messacar, Kim Rosseter, G...


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	PUBLIC COMMENT: In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – Members of the Public and Visitors
	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	G-1 No Postponed Items

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled
	H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:
	H-3 Proposed Troy City Code Ordinance Amendment – Chapter 98 – Criminal Code Under 21 – Purchase, Consume or Possess Alcohol and Under 21 - PBT Refusal
	H-4 Candlewood Second Amended and Restated Consent Judgment
	H-5 February 23, 2010 Special Election Proposed Millage Question
	H-6 Recovery Zone Facility Bond – North American BanCard Project Plan

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted
	I-4 Request for Recognition as  Nonprofit Organization Status from Kristine Casko, Member of the Board of Directors for the Pink Rose Inspirational Foundation, Inc.
	I-5 Final Addendum #2 – Charnwood Phase 1 and 2 Chip Seal Contract 07-4
	I-6 Request from Square Lake – Livernois Business, Inc. for a New SDM License with Gas Pumps to be Located at 5997 Livernois – MLCC Request #518636
	I-7 Designation of Act 51 Street Administrator
	I-8 City of Troy Investment Policy and Establishment of Investments Accounts
	I-9 Proposed 2010 City Council Meetings

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at some future point in time): None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	K-1   No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS
	L-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS
	M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – September 15, 2009
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – October 7, 2009
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – October 12, 2009
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – October 14, 2009
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 27, 2009
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 27, 2009
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – November 4, 2009
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – November 9, 2009
	Library Advisory Board/Draft – November 12, 2009

	M-2 Department Reports:
	(a) Police Department – 2009 Year-To-Date Calls for Police Service Report
	(b) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – October, 2009
	(c) Building Department – Permits Issued October 2009

	M-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to Sam Lamerato from Sue Kazmierczak Regarding the Presentation

	M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted
	M-5  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of The Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-16047
	M-6  Communication from Wayne State University, Congratulating City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm on her Inclusion in this Year’s Edition of Michigan Super Lawyers Magazine
	M-7  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Certification as International Municipal Lawyers Association (IMLA) Local Government Fellow

	STUDY ITEMS
	N-1   No Study Items Submitted

	CLOSED SESSION:
	O-1 Closed Session

	ADJOURNMENT



